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Financial Highlights
BT 15 % &

The board of directors (the “Board”) of HNA Infrastructure
Company Limited (“HNA Infrastructure”, “Meilan Airport” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased
to announce the operating results, the unaudited financial results
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2015, which have
been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), and the prospects for the second half of 2015.

EMERBRNDERAG (EMER] - [E@HEE K
[RAR]] EREWBARSE A£@))ESE([E
Ee )RA DAL EHE2015F6 4308 1E61EA 2
BEBER  EARARBEREZER((EREEg)EN
REEZ REBEAUBEEBER20I5F TN EFRE o

Six months ended 30 June

#HZE6H30A IL61EA

(RMB’000) 2014 Changes(%)
(AR¥TT) 20144 2 8h(%)
Turnover == 457,064 25.08
Gross profit EH 293,937 17.47
Net profit attributable to shareholders — B% 5 &1 41 7] 166,468 39.39
Earnings per share-basic (RMB) FRERABN-EXR(AREIT) 0.35 40.00
Net operating cash flow EEEHSFERE 140,340 53.59
EBITDA EBITDA 305,069 23.51

As at

31 December
(RMB’000) 2014 Changes(%)

20144
(AR¥ETFTT) 12A31H (%)
Total assets BEE 5,721,747 -0.29
Total liabilities BwEE 2,830,393 -7.42
Total equity I R = 2,891,354 6.69
Current ratio MEN L & 2.87 -18.12
Gearing ratio BEEREX 49.47% -3.54

2015 EAsR &

EMEARKRHARZA 5



Management Discussion and Analysis

S 5B 5 3 B A AT

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to RMB571,693,772, representing an increase of
25.08% as compared to the corresponding period of 2014. Net
profit attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB232,036,002,
representing an increase of 39.39% as compared to the corresponding
period of 2014. Earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.49 (the
corresponding period of 2014: earnings per share RMBO0.35).

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
CIVIL AVIATION INDUSTRY IN CHINA

In the first half of 2015, the world’s economy remained mild
recovery. Affected by the over-supply of the international crude
oil market and the continuously intense political atmosphere in
some areas such as Middle East, the price of the international
crude oil lingered in low level. In particular, the signing of the
comprehensive agreement on Iranian nuclear program in July
2015 between Irag and the US, the United Kingdom, France,
China, Russia and Germany at Vienna, will strike a serious blow
to the crude oil market in the coming middle to long term, and
deteriorate the already over-supply situation. The further decline
of the crude oil price will bring development opportunities for the
global civil aviation industry.

During the first half of 2015, the completed flight hours and the
number of flights of the civil aviation industry of China totaled
4.082 million and 1.744 million, respectively, representing a year-
on-year increase of 12.2% and 8.7%, respectively. The total
traffic turnover was 40.51 billion tons/km, the passenger traffic
volume was 210 million and the cargo and mail traffic volume was
2.991 million tons, representing a year-on-year growth of 14.5%,
12.5% and 6.6%, respectively. There were 3 newly established air
transportation companies and 24 general aviation companies.

The civil aviation industry of China enjoyed significant increase
in scale of economy in the first half of 2015. The total profits of
the industry for the first half of 2015 reached RMB29.24 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB21.4 billion. Such
result hit a record high by outpacing the whole-year record of
2014 (total profit for the whole year of 2014: RMB28.89 billion).

6 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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EHE000.18 18 - AL R6.6% o MK EBHMER
AI3K  MAM 24K -

20156F E¥F - FERMELE G ANREA + £
FITEMNBRBEINARK202.4187T » ALEBRAR
ko148 - E¥FHBEEM2014F 2 FKFE (20145
2EFEARE288.9ET)  BIEL#HS -

INTERIM REPORT 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE S am B AT

The Group will be well equipped by keeping an eye on the
development trend of the civil aviation industry of China in the
second half of 2015 and intensively studying the state policies so
as to strive for the increase of capacity by airlines on the premise
of safe flight, as well as the continuous consolidation of Meilan
Airport’s position among the major airports in China.

TOURISM IN HAINAN

In the first half of 2015, the tourism of Hainan Province maintained
rapid growth. For the period ended 30 June 2015, the number
of domestic and foreign tourists staying overnight amounted
to 24.9079 million, representing a year-on-year growth of
11.16%. The total revenue from tourism was RMB24.634 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 13.7%.

On 28 March 2015, the “Vision and Actions on Jointly Building
Silk Road Economic Belt and 21st-Century Maritime Silk Road”
((HEBHBEAABEBETN2IELE E4RA B BERET
&))) (the “Vision and Action”) was promulgated by the National
Development and Reform Commission (the “NDRC”), the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs and the Ministry of Commerce (the “MOC”) of
the PRC. The “Belt and Road Initiative”, a core principle of the
Vision and Action, aroused worldwide attention. In order to grasp
the opportunities to be arising from the “Belt and Road Initiative”,
on 13 May 2015, Hainan Tourist Attractions Association (&F#&
IR 2% &) and the Association of Travel Agencies of Hainan
(5 7 & Ik 174 % €) signed a “Joint Declaration in relation to
the Development of Hainan Province into a World Class Special
Tourist Zone” ((HEEBHEEERER —FRREFEXFIEEF)),
pursuant to which, both parties will join hands to develop Hainan
into a shining pearl lying on the 21st Century Maritime Silk Road
through mutual communication and coordination.

To cope with the State’s “Belt and Road Initiative” development
strategy, the Tourism Development Committee of Hainan (8%
R#EEEZ 82) and HNA Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (SRS
BB R/2 7)) duly entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
on 7 May 2015. Under such agreement, both parties will establish
joint venture for investment and financing of toursim industry, and
set up various funds, such as tourism fund and cruise fund, in
order to optimize the infrastructures of Hainan tourism. They will
actively facilitate integration of aviation industry, informatisation
and tourism so as to bring robust development in the inbound
tourism market of Hainan. They will strive to develop Hainan into a
major international tourist area and an ideal destination for leisure
and vacation, and eventually, attract more foreign tourists to
discover, experience and enjoy fun in Hainan.

AEBBTBITBERME2016F THEFNERE
¥ RAWFER  FRAMRBEREE  EHRLZEZ
MATIRT  2NFBMERBMAE SRR - TER
THEEER#SER AR ESHEMAL o

JBF 5 e 167

20156F L¥F @ BEEAREERERFTSRIER -
H 1F2015%F 6 A30H » 24 BEFRAIINBRERE
2,490.798 AX R R11.16% » IREFAAUAZE A
R#0246.34187C - RILLIER13.7% °

20153 H28H + FEARLNMBBERERINKNES
BEg([HRBERE])  PEARKEMBISZE - F2E
AREMBEFHFI([EBBBEEM T GEBHEE
SR 7 AR TNt 4008 HAAAE 2 IR BR S 1T E))
([KFEEETE)])  (EEHERTIHMZROAR [ —F—
B AR AEIREINES - BEFILE[—&F—5K]
BiEE BAZATTE SRR KB - 2015F5 8130 » ™
BREERHERSHERTENBEERARS T (GEE
BEEERER —RRKEFEERES)  EHABES
FHARZAMEBEGE  ABEMITEKAER
o408 E4A Ik EM—BEERABEMERE S -
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EE FRIERBEEXRNZRERS @ REBEA
EMSEEDER  BHKEMITERNSERNERE
KEREEBRIKER 6 - ARSI EZRIMNER IR
B BRER - FRER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE R am R AT

Full support from the local government is the key to the continuous
rapid development of the tourism in Hainan. The People’s
Government of Hainan Province and the Customs of Haikou of
the PRC (the “Haikou Customs”) had launched new incentives for
aviation industry and the policies of bonded oil for aviation. They
had devoted much effort on the expansion of customer base for
Haikou aviation industry, encouraged and attracted domestic
and foreign airlines to increase the number of flights that land at
Haikou. Different incentives have been tailored for the airlines,
new routes and charted routes, boosting the development of the
tourism in Hainan.

KEY TOURISM PROJECTS IN HAINAN

In the first half of 2015, the government at all levels of Hainan
Province strives to drive the development of key tourism projects.

In April 2015, with diversified and modern design and rich
resources for eco-tourism, the Mission Hill Resort, Haikou was
awarded National 4A rating. It was the fourth resort awarded such
honour after the Haikou Holiday Beach, the Haikou Geological
Park of Volcano Clusters and Hainan Tropical Wildlife Park. The
“Feng Xiaogang Movie Town” in such resort has also become one
of the most featured cultural areas. Its structures adopted the
style of early Republic, combined with active commercial activities,
turning it into a sparkling tourist spot in Northern Hainan.

The construction of the “Universal Studio 100" project, the first
project in the cultural industry in Hainan Province, launched by
Changchun Film Studio has been commenced in June 2015. The
first phase of such project will start trial operation in October 2016.
As currently expected, the Golden Rooster and Hundred Flowers
Film Festival and the Chinese American Film Festival for the year
2017 and 2018 are to be held in the studio.

Boao Happy City International Medical & Tourism Pilot Zone,
China’s first ever state-level development zone integrating
international medical and tourism services, low-carbon ecological
community and international organisations, has undertaken
seven projects, involving International Life and Health Testing
Centre (BB A dnfE F I L)) and International New Energy
Medical Research Center (EIfR#8E 2 B 25T+ D), with a total
investment of RMB2.38 billion. Construction of the infrastructures
of the projects has been commenced in September 2015.

8 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE S am B AT

It is expected that the gradual completion of these key tourism
projects will bring new vitality to the tourism of Northern Hainan
and reveal a new era of the tourism of Hainan.

The Group will pay close attention to the development trend of
the tourism of Northern Hainan, actively cooperate with the local
government to carry out promotion of the characteristic tourism
products of Northern Hainan, and grasp the opportunities to drive
the passenger throughput of Meilan Airport to hit a new high
record.

TRANSPORTATION ON THE ISLAND

Hainan West Ring High-speed Railway project, with a
total length of 345 kilometers and a designed speed of
200 kilometers per hour, has its railway truck duly laid as
at 30 June 2015 and has completed closed loop stage
with East Ring Railway. Such progress symbolized an
inauguration of the roundabout railway in Hainan, enabling
Hainan to realise an era of life in which people spends three
hours in transportation through this roundabout railway
and combined airway-railway traffic. The conditions for
Hainan West Ring High-speed Railway to open to traffic are
expected to be satisfied by the end of 2015.

In the first half of 2015, Hainan Province has driven the
development of key highway transportation projects in full
swing. Tunchang — Qiongzhong Highway, being part of the
key network of the “farmland-shaped” high speed railway in
Hainan Province, has been open to traffic on 30 May 2015.
On the same day, the contruction of Qiongzhong — Wuzhi
Mountain — Ledong High-speed Railway, with a total length
of approximately 129 kilometers and a total investment of
RMB11.7 billion, has been started. It is expected to be open
to traffic in 2018. The construction of the Dinghai Bridge,
connecting three transportation hubs in Haikou, Dingan and
Chengmai and having a total investment of approximately
RMB500 million, has been carrying out smoothly and is
expected to be open to traffic in 2015. The development of
Hainan’s largest independent bridge-tunnel Pu Qian Bridge
has been running smoothly and is expected to be open to
traffic in 2015.

In respect of the airport investment and development, the
construction of the Qionghai Boao Airport, which commenced
on 19 March 2015, has been underway as scheduled and is
expected to commence operation by the end of 2016.

ELBRMERENELSEK - B REEIKERS
AR BAL IR EIRRFE 1 > RAIBRIRERNRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE R am R AT

OFFSHORE DUTY FREE

In the first half of 2015, with further relief to the State’s offshore
duty free policies, the sales of duty free commodities of Hainan
once again reached a record high. Two duty free shops in
Haikou and Sanya had sold 3.62 million duty free commodities in
aggregate with sales amounted to RMB3.18 billion and the total
number of shopping tourists amounted to 986,000, representing a
year-on-year growth of 27.1%, 54.8% and 39.9%, respectively.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, Haimian Haikou Meilan
Airport Duty-Free Shop Co., Ltd. (8% /8 O M52 HIEAR A
a]) (the “Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop”) recorded sales
revenue of RMB666.87 million and total shoppers of 369,109,
representing a year-on-year increase of 45.57% and 36.28%,
respectively.

Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop has a current operating
area of 5,277 square meters. According to the West Gallery
extension project in Meilan Airport, the operating area of
Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop will be increased by
approximately 2,644 square meters and will commence operation
in September 2015 along with the West Gallery. It is expected to
bring more considerable franchise income to Meilan Airport.

In May 2015, Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop has
commenced “Deposit Offshore, Pick Up Backshore” services,
which means, tourists who ask for this service and fill in deposit
form after purchasing duty-free commodities in Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop would be able to enjoy the lugguage
deposit services at departure. When they arrive, they could pick
up their commodities at the “Luggage Claim Area” at Meilan
Airport upon signing of the confirmation and leave the restricted
area. Such service not only enhances the offshore shopping
convenience of tourists, but also improves their shopping
experience.

The “Duty-Free Commodities e-Shop” (www.mianshui365.com),
jointly launched by Hainan Duty-Free Company Limited (SF%&
® AR AR, Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop and
Hainan E King Technology Company Limited (87 5 &R 5
BBRAF]), has been duly open since June 2014 and recorded
single-day highest turnover of RMB3.25 million and an average
monthly increase in sales of over 80%. Meanwhile, the sales of
Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop has been uplifting year
by year, reaching an annual sales growth of more than 47%
and a total turnover from inauguration until now of more than
RMB2 billion. Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop has started
a fever of purchasing duty-free commodities.

10
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE S am B AT

To enhance convenience and improve duty-free shopping
experience in Hainan, building on the success of the “Commodities
Claim at Airport After Purchasing at Duty-Free Shop” at Sanya,
“Claim upon Purchase” at Haikou, and “Purchase at Two Shops
per One Departure” models, Haikou Customs launched new ways
of duty-free commodities claim services including “Claim Upon
Purchase, Tax Return after Payment” and “Mailing Service at
Special Situations”, etc.

The sustainably flourishing development of duty-free industry in
Hainan Province has not only fully enhanced the international
recognition of Hainan, but also boosted the rapid growth of local
tourism and consumption. It has also, directly or indirectly, driven
the continued surge of the passenger traffic of Meilan Airport.

BUSINESS AND REVENUE REVIEW
OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2015, in compliance with the industrial safety
at work objective of the State, the Group has strengthened and
improved its safety management to ensure a safe and stable
environment for the operation of Meilan Airport. The Group has
also successfully fulfilled the transportation security tasks for major
events, including the Boao Forum for Asia Annual Conference, and
has won high recognitions from various sectors.

The Group has achieved success in brand buildings during the first
half of 2015. With excellent staff performance, professional image
and sincere attitude, the Group has been awarded the “China’s
Best Airport with Excellence Staff Performance” by SKYTRAX,
which is the first airport across the nation to obtain such honour.
Once again, it has once again obtained an award of “the World’s
Best Airport” with 5 to 15 million passenger throughput by ASQ
(Airport Service Quality), and has been shortlisted in the “Best
Airport in Asia Pacific Region” award for the first time. For the
second half of 2015, the Group will focus on the realignment of
its key project of becoming SKYTRAX five-star airport, aiming at
realizing its goal within this year.

RENREEY  RTGEL2TEYESR S0 EH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE R am R AT

During the first half of 2015, the Group continued to expand
the construction of intelligent airport with three major focuses
including safety, services and operation. Among which, the online
trail run of 119 fire control system has effectively enhanced the
ability of precise command and quick response of Meilan Airport
in terms of fire control. The operations of the self baggage check
system, one passport clearance system and self check-in system
have realized full self-serviced departure procedures at Meilan
Airport and enabled Meilan Airport to be certified as a “Golden
Airport” by the IATA (International Air Transport Association). The
trail runs of the digital intercom system, 4G exclusive network,
alternate flight system and new VIP room system have further
optimized the operating flow of the airport.

Since August 2013, when the construction of the West Gallery
expansion project commenced, the project has been carrying out
on schedule with high quality and has currently entered into a final
stage of inspection and acceptance. The trial run is expected to
start in September 2015. Over 90% of the west apron construction
project has been completed and will commence operation in
parallel to the West Gallery expansion project, during which the
number of aprons at Meilan Airport will be increased from 65 to 78.
Besides, the feasibility report in respect of the Phase Il expansion
project of Meilan Airport has been approved by the NDRC. Land
requisition and preliminary design have been carried out in full
swing. It is expected to commence construction in October 2015.

In addition, in the first half of 2015, adhering to the principle of
“people-oriented”, the Group continued to care for its staff by
making, in aggregate, an investment of more than RMB1.5 million
to organize more than 18 staff caring activities like “Embrace
the Nature” hiking activities, festival greetings, body check, etc.,
which helped enhancing bonds between staff, increasing group
cohesiveness and thereby paving solid foundation for forming a
stable, united, healthy and energetic working team. At the same
time, the Group paid sustainable effort in social welfare activities
through participation of blood donation, visiting charity houses,
tree planting, and actively performed its social responsibility.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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OVERVIEW OF AVIATION BUSINESS

Against a backdrop of overall rapid development of the civil
aviation industry, together with various favourable factors such as
the development of Hainan international tourist island and offshore
duty-free policy, on 13 August 2015, Meilan Airport has achieved a
passenger throughput of over 10 million for five consecutive years.
The Group hit a record high this year with 135 days earlier than in
2011, when the record of over 10 million was achieved for the first
time, and 46 days earlier than in 2014, respectively. It continued
to strengthen its marketing efforts in major aviation markets. By
closer communication with local government, active realignment
in and extension of flight incentives, Meilan Airport has attracted
many airlines to increase their capacity. It has also set up a tourism
association at Haikou with the local government and fully utllized
the resources from the platform in order to promote seamless
development of the civil aviation industry through flourishing
tourism.

In the first half of 2015, Meilan Airport operated 163 aviation
routes, including 153 domestic routes, 3 regional routes and 7
international routes. It had flights to 80 destinations, including
73 domestic cities, 3 regional cities and 4 international cities.
There are 34 airlines operating in Meilan Airport, including 25
domestic airlines, 4 regional airlines and 5 international airlines.
Since entering into the summer and autumn flight season in
2015, Meilan Airport opened an additional of 33 routes over the
corresponding period of last year. The overall flight execution rate
stood at 82.97% and passenger throughput increased by 19.73%
as compared to the summer and autumn flight season in 2014.

The Group scientifically and rationally formulated customized
marketing strategies and targets, actively visited international and
regional airlines and airports to promote our airlines, conducted
extensive cooperation with airlines and tourism agents to launched
holiday products with air routes covering different countries and
regions such as Thailand, Singapore, Korea, Japan, Taiwan,
Hong Kong, etc., and achieved a favorable results. Therefore, the
international and regional transportation capacity of the Group
also achieved historically best performance as compared to the
corresponding period. For the six months ended 30 June 2015,
the international and regional passenger throughput amounted to
266,300, representing a year-on-year growth of 0.34%.

M A2 R T A
TEMEBRBRRERMOEST - N2 /88 ERIKE
SREIHEESEMBEENITEZNRE - EWHES
F2015F8A13HERBEAFREAMLERHETEA
R B0 FER [ETEJRAI135K + 20145F 1%
AI46K » FARIFT4CER o A AR BRIF T @ 0K 2=
FEMGEHANE - BB EENBTER - BRE
A FAEBEMEREBEE - WIlEZHMZED G IRE
7 BAEBBRFEEKSOTRERS - FIAFA
BR - REREXTDMETEM S TEHRBIER

20155 L¥F - MM HEL1636ME - AP E
ARAR 15316 « HEMARIG - BEMR7IE B
T80fE « KRB m73@ - thE i maE - B ™
AfE HBARMENREWEE - EFEKN255R -
HEAR  BEEESR - B20156FEEMMETBEFPAR » =
BHIS R LI IN3IEFBAMAR - BEMMENTERE
82.97% ' IRB AN EH2014FEMNERAIELILE T
19.73% °
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Details of the aviation traffic throughput in the first half of 2015 and

the comparison figures of the corresponding period of last year are &40 :

set out below:

20155 ¥ F =

RiBREFFEMEEFRME LB

First half of

2014 Change(%)
20144 L+ 8 (%)
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights) FROME R P BRI (ZRIX) 54,964 14.83
in which: Domestic Heb R 52,538 15.30
International and regional B RR Kt & 2,426 4,78

Passenger throughput REATE(EAX)
(headcount in ten thousand) 719.60 17.44
in which: Domestic Heh o R 693.06 18.09
International and regional B B2 K2 b [ 26.54 0.34
Cargo and mail throughput (tons) EETEMHE(NE) 120,448.90 14.19
in which: Domestic He R 116,222.60 13.72
International and regional B RR Kt & 4,226.30 27.28

The Group’s revenue from aviation business for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 was RMB305,706,399, representing
an increase of approximately 15.19% as compared to the

corresponding period of 2014. Details are as follows:

HZE2015F6 A30H IE61E A © KEEMZE WA
A AN RE305,706,3997T © 2014F R HE R T 4
15.19% » FIBUF ¢

Change over the

Amount  corresponding

(RMB)  period of 2014

820145

G EIHR & B

(AR®ETT) (%)

Passenger service charges RE RS E 122,498,277 15.81
Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund B REESREME 97,355,630 15.07
Ground handling service income b AR 7S & 44,105,915 15.11
Related charges on aircraft takeoff and landing FROMFEFE R AR R E 41,746,577 13.76
Total revenue from aviation business M= EAamA 305,706,399 15.19
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OVERVIEW OF NON-AVIATION BUSINESS

In the first half of 2015, the non-aviation business of the
Group maintained growth momentum and achieved revenue
of RMB265,987,373 for the six months ended 30 June 2015,
representing an increase of 38.78% over the corresponding
period of 2014. The increase of non-aviation business revenue
was mainly attributable to the significant increases in both the
franchise income of the Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop
and the freight and packaging income. Besides, the Group has
made rational planning on the terminals and actively explore new
business to ensure persistent increase in revenue from non-
aviation business.

FERLZEHETE
2015F L F » AEEFMEEBKEERT RITAIE
RAES - HE2015F6A30HI61EA - AEBEEIRIE
R EB A A R#265,987,3737T © #2014 4F [F Hf
#R38.78%  EMEEBRAMEREIESTNER
IS RBIERTCERRATNEERBERAKX
BER FENAEEBRBENRBREETERSE  BE
MR - BIRFEMEEBRAFELE -

Change over the

Amount  corresponding

(RMB)  period of 2014

820145

-] EIHAZE)

(AR%7TT) (%)

Franchise income FERT A E A 134,828,821 29.99
Freight and packaging income EERBERKA 72,256,810 111.67
Rental income it ON 18,946,343 7.31
Parking income EEIHZWA 8,586,217 14.27
VIP room income EEEWA 7,211,978 -39.28
Other income HelA 24,157,204 4411
Total revenue from non-aviation businesses M R BURA 265,987,373 38.78

FRANCHISE INCOME

In the first half of 2015, the aggregated franchise income of the
Group amounted to RMB134,828,821, representing a year-on-
year increase of 29.99%. The increase was mainly attributable to
the growth of sales revenue of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty Free
Shop, which contributed to the increase in franchise income of the
Group.

FREIGHT AND PACKAGING INCOME

In the first half of 2015, the aggregated freight and packaging
income of the Group amounted to RMB72,256,810, representing
a year-on-year increase of 111.67%. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increases in the business volume of the cargo
freight services and the sales of packaging materials.

FFETAS A

2015F L¥F  AEERFFTLERBARTTHAR
#134,828,82170 * AL &K29.99% - FERARE
BRSHERTHIENHEERAEER  FEASE WA
RIS R AE N o

EE R #RIKA

20156 E¥F AEEEERBRERARTETREAR
#72,256,8107 * FLIER111.67% - FEREARSE
PRIBEBSEMEBEDEESE EF -
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RENTAL INCOME

In the first half of 2015, the aggregated rental income of the
Group amounted to RMB18,946,343, representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.31%.

PARKING INCOME

In the first half of 2015, the aggregated parking income of the
Group was RMB8,586,217, representing a year-on-year growth
of 14.27%, which was mainly because there was increase in
the passenger throughput in Meilan Airport, and the Group
strengthened the management of the parking lot and its
surrounding areas and fully utilized the existing parking area.

VIP ROOM INCOME

In the first half of 2015, the aggregated VIP room income of the
Group amounted to RMB7,211,978, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 39.28%. This was mainly due to the decrease
in reception volume of VIP room services caused by relevant
domestic policies in the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
ASSET ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2015, total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB5,705,229,324, of which RMB1,843,816,456 were current
assets and RMB3,861,412,868 were non-current assets. The total
assets decreased by 0.29% over that as at 31 December 2014.

COST AND EXPENSE ANALYSIS

In the first half of 2015, the Group’s operating costs amounted to
RMB215,574,343, and the administrative expenses amounted to
RMB26,581,577, totaling RMB242,155,920, which represented
a year-on-year increase of 32.26%. The increase in costs and
expenses was mainly attributable to:

(1)  cost of the cargo freight business increased by RMB35,966,611
as the volume of the cargo freight services grew;

(2) staff cost increased by RMB9,579,105 as compared to
the corresponding period of 2014 as the Group raised the
remuneration level of its staff and increased the number of its
staff; and

(8) the cost of contract labour increased by RMB5,424,790 due
to the increase in the number of contract labour to cope with
the business needs of the Company.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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M2015F6 A30H ' REBEEBEAARE
5,705,229,324 7T + EAhiiE) & E A AR EE1,843,816,456
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2014512 431 B T~ [%0.29% °

KK E 5T
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In the first half of 2015, the Group’s finance expenses
amounted to RMB11,363,651, which represented a decrease
of RMB42,507,238 as compared to the corresponding period
of 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to the increase
in capitalisation of interests, increase in interest income from
entrusted loan from related party, and gain from translation of US
currency as a result of change of exchange rate.

CASH FLOW

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s net
cash inflow from operating activities was RMB215,547,782,
representing an increase of 53.59% over last year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase of the operating revenue of the
Group for the period.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s net cash
outflow from investing activities was RMB109,442,442, which was
mainly used for acquisition of equipment, facilities and other fixed
assets as required for operation for the period.

For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s net cash
outflow from financing activities was RMB361,764,795, which
was mainly due to repayment of borrowing of US$34,000,000
(equivalent to RMB209,946,000) by the Group during the period.

GEARING RATIO

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had total current assets of
RMB1,843,816,456, total assets of RMB5,705,229,324, total
current liabilities of RMB784,430,439 and total liabilities of
RMB2,620,312,590. As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s gearing
ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 45.93%, representing a
decrease of 3.54% as compared to that as at 31 December 2014.
The decrease was caused by the repayment of borrowings of
US$9,000,000 to China Development Bank, the repayment of the
borrowing of US$25,000,000 to the Taiwan syndication and the
payment of interests accrued in 2014,

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The long-term borrowing of US$72,500,000 from China
Development Bank was secured by 24.5% equity interests in
HNA Airport Holdings held by the Group. As at 30 June 2015,
the outstanding balance of the borrowing was US$17,993,475
(equivalent to RMB110,004,909).

The Group’s long-term borrowing of US$250,000,000 from
Taiwan syndication was secured by the 51% equity interests in
Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo Co., Ltd. held by the
Group and certain land use rights of the Group with book value
amounting to RMB8,593,242. As at 30 June 2015, outstanding
balance of the borrowing was US$225,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,375,560,000).

2015F ¥ F  AEBEUBKERAARY11,363,651
JC  BR2014F R Em > AR #42,507,2387T * £ E R
ERFEEARNEHEI - B A ZTEROFEWA
LA J% [ = 2 B A5 2 ) 36 JO O 3 UES o

BHZE2015F6 8308 1F618 A - AEBE&LLEHIR
EFRABAREE215547,78270 © & 4 [F #3128 hn
53,59% ' ZIEENETEZRERANEB AR L E A
0 e

HZE20156%F6A30H L6 A @ AEBMKEEEIRG
FRHAARKA109,442,44277 - FERAHIEBEEL
BIEREREEEEEE -

HZE20156%F6A30H It61EA @ AEBMNBEEEIRG
FomH A ARK361,764,7957C 0 F E R ANEE K
fE] {8 i8 18 5X34,000,000% 7T (#1& A R % 209,946,000
Jo) °

BERER

R20156F6 H30H * AEEMABEERTEAARE
1,843,816,4567T * B E % B AR MS5,705,229,324
T B BERBEAARKT84,430,4397T - BER
A AR2620,312,5907T - #2015 6 A30H -
AEEEERBER(AERSE EEHR)H4593%
201412831 B T [£3.54% » T ERAHREH
R B2 R 17 18 30 9,000,0003E 7t ~ SRiE & EIREE XK
25,000,0003E 7T A1 7 51201 4 6 FE A FI B T2

EFHEE T

REB LA B KM ISIER% 24 5% A E B Bl R F
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/225,000,000 T (1A AR #1,375,560,0007T ) ©
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Certain land use rights for the construction of the West Gallery and
the international terminal have been pledged to secure a long-term
borrowing granted to Haikou Meilan International Airport Company
Limited (the “Parent Company”) (of which the Company is the joint
borrowers) by China Development Bank. As at 30 June 2015, the
balance of the long-term borrowing was RMB590,000,000.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

As at 30 June 2015, the total issued share capital of the Company
was RMB473,213,000. Currently, the Group has borrowings from
China Development Bank of US$17,993,475 with an interest rate
of Libor (“London InterBank Offered Rate”) plus 3.4% and the
borrowings from Taiwan syndication of US$225,000,000 with
an interest rate of Libor plus 3.3%. The Group also conducted
public issue of registered, book-entry company bonds of
RMBB800,000,000 on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with a fixed
interest rate of 7.8% per annum. In addition, a financial leasing
facilities of RMB83,664,492 was granted by Jiangsu Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd. (T # @ EREABR A R).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND THEIR
PERFORMANCES

As at 30 June 2015, the Company held 24.5% equity interests in
HNA Airport Holdings. HNA Airport Holdings is principally engaged
in the investment, holding, improvement and construction of
airports. It has subsidiaries namely Sanya Phoenix International
Airport Co., Ltd. (= 25 Bl EIBIFR #15 B BR & £ 2 7)), Sanya Phoenix
Airport Inn Management Co., Ltd. (=Bl B S REBIEEIESR
R /A &), Sanya Phoenix Airport Cargo Co., Ltd. (= 3a/Bl 2| Bl B
BEBAR A A, Manzhouli Xijiao Airport Co., Ltd. (WM EFEZE
5B R & T2 R]), Manzhouli Xijiao Airport Travel Agency Co.,
Ltd. (M RIS IRIT+ B R & A F]), Yichang Sanxia Airport
Co., Ltd. (HESZB#E B & T A F) and Yichang Lucky Travel
Agency Co., Ltd. (B & FERTTAL AR A A]). With the flourishing
development of the aviation industry and the tourism, the
Company expects HNA Airport Holdings will have a prosperous
future and will continue to bring considerable investment returns to
the Company.

In the first half of 2015, the Company recorded an investment
income of RMB10,802,395 based on the net profit attributable to
parent company of HNA Airport Holdings.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As at 30 June 2015, the Company did not carry out any new and
major acquisitions and disposals.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had a total of 734 employees,
representing an increase of 6 employees as compared to the
beginning of this year. The increase was mainly due to normal staff
recruitment. Employees of the Group are remunerated based on
their performance, experience and prevailing industry practices.
The Group reviews its remuneration policy and packages on a
regular basis. Bonuses and commissions may be awarded to
employees as incentives based on performance assessment.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE FIXED
DEPOSITS

As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any entrusted
deposits or overdue fixed deposits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in
RMB, except certain revenue from aviation business, purchase
of equipment and consultation fee which are denominated in
US$ or HK$. The dividends to H-share holders are declared
in RMB but paid in HK$. According to the overall arrangement
in relation to the acquisition of 24.5% equity interests in
HNA Airport Holdings, the balance of the US$ denominated
borrowing from China Development Bank in relation to the said
acquisition was US$17,993,475, while the balance of the US$
denominated syndicated borrowing from Taiwan syndication
to finance the construction of the terminal complex project
was US$225,000,000. The principals and interests of these
two borrowings should be borne by the Group. Therefore, any
fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB against US$ will affect
the financial performance of the Group. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is obliged to repay the principal and interests of the
US$ denominated bank borrowings of US$17,993,475 and
US$225,000,000 granted by China Development Bank and the
Taiwan syndication respectively. Any changes in Libor and interest
rate adjustment by the People’s Bank of China will affect the
interest expenses and results of the Group.

1E B ] 57 BV I 56
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NO OTHER MATERIAL CHANGE

Other than those discussed in this interim report, there has been
no material change in relation to the information disclosed in the
Company’s 2014 Annual Report in accordance with Rule 32 set
out in Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “HK Stock Exchange”).

PROGRESS OF ADDITIONAL ISSUE AND ACQUISITION
PROJECT

In accordance with the disclosures made in the announcements
and circular issued by the Company dated 2 July 2014,
31 July 2014 and 15 August 2014, respectively, the poll
results announcement dated 30 September 2014, and the
announcements dated 31 December 2014, 31 March 2015, 30
June 2015 and 31 July 2015:

The Company and the Parent Company entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Parent Company
has agreed to subscribe for 66,615,016 new domestic shares
in the Company in cash at the aggregate subscription price of
RMB379,039,440 (equivalent to HK$477,319,531.5).

The Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement
with Xinhua Lianhang Airport Industry Investment Development
Co., Ltd. (“Xinhua Lianhang”), HNA International Tourism
Island Development (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Development”)
and Hainan HNA Engineering Construction Co., Ltd. (“HNA
Engineering”) as the Vendors, pursuant to which (i) the Company
had conditionally agreed to acquire and Xinhua Lianhang
had conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Shares of Wuhan
HNA Lanhai Airport Industry Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan
Linkong”), representing 80% equity interest in Wuhan Linkong at
a consideration of RMB379,039,440 (equivalent to approximately
HK$477,319,531.5), which will be satisfied in full by cash;
and (ii) the Company had conditionally agreed to acquire and
Haidao Development and HNA Engineering had conditionally
agreed to sell Sale Shares of the Hainan Haidao Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Commercial”), representing
100% equity interest in Haidao Commercial at an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,273,518,200 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,603,725,223.5), which will be satisfied in full partly by
setting off the Loan Advances and partly by the allotment and
issue of the Consideration Shares. The completion of the sale
and purchase of the Wuhan Linkong Sale Shares and the Haidao
Commercial Sale Shares are inter-conditional and shall take place
simultaneously.
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Completion of the Subscription Agreement is conditional upon
fulfillment of the following conditions: (a) the passing of resolutions
by the Board and at the meetings of the Shareholders (including
Class Meetings) in accordance with the Articles and the Listing
Rules approving the Subscription Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder; (b) the Parent Company having
obtained the internal approvals from its competent decision
making bodies; and (c) all necessary approvals, authorizations,
consents having been obtained from and all necessary
registrations and filings (if required) having been completed with
all competent governmental authorities or regulatory bodies or
other third parties in respect of the Subscription Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder by the Company and
the Parent Company. None of the conditions precedent above
is waivable. In the event any of the conditions precedent are not
fulfilled on or before 31 December 2014 or such later date as may
be agreed between the Company and the Parent Company, the
Subscription Agreement shall automatically be terminated (save
that the clauses relating to confidentiality, notices and governing
law shall continue to have full force and effect).

To date, the Company has spent tremendous and continuous
effort in obtaining all necessary governmental approvals. However,
as at 31 July 2015 (the Long Stop Date of the Subscription
Agreement and the Sale and Purchase Agreement), the Company
is still unable to obtain the necessary approvals from the Civil
Aviation Administration of China and the MOC in respect of the
Subscription Agreement and the Sale and Purchase Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder. As a result, the
Subscription Agreement and the Sale and Purchase Agreement
shall automatically be terminated in accordance with the terms
thereof, and neither party shall have any obligations nor liabilities
towards each other thereafter save for any antecedent breaches
of the terms of the Subscription Agreement and the Sale and
Purchase Agreement.

On 31 July 2015 (after trading hours of the HK Stock Exchange),
a termination deed was signed between the Company and the
Parent Company, pursuant to which, each of the parties has
agreed to release the other from all obligations and liabilities
arising from or related to the Subscription Agreement and none of
the parties shall take any action to claim for damages in relation
to the Subscription Agreement. Meanwhile, the Company, Xinhua
Linhang, Haidao Development and HNA Engineering have signed
a termination confirmation to formally record their common
consent on the termination of the SPA, in which each of the
parties has also agreed that it shall not take any action to claim for
damages against the others.
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At the same time, the Board hereby informs the shareholders
and the potential investors of the Company that should there be
any new agreement be reached in relation to the Subscription
Agreement and the SPA in the future, the Company will report
such agreement to the Board and at the general meeting for
consideration, and make a timely disclosure to the market
pursuant to the Listing Rules after obtaining unanimous consent
about the new proposal.

PROGRESS OF THE RENEWAL OF “FRANCHISE
CONTRACT” AND “VENUE LEASING CONTRACT”
WITH MEILAN AIRPORT OFFSHORE DUTY-FREE
SHOP

The “Franchise Contract in respect of Leasing of Venue for
Offshore Duty-Free Business” and the “Meilan Airport Venue
Leasing Contract” (collectively, the “Duty-Free Contracts”) entered
into between the Group and Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free
Shop have been expired. Both parties are in the process of friendly
negotiations for the renewal of the Duty-Free Contracts.

With the effect of the Hainan offshore duty-free policies
continuously extending, the Company, as always, shows its
immense support to the development of Meilan Airport Offshore
Duty-Free Shop. Meanwhile, Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free
Shop will enhance the “travelling and shopping experience (I
8817)” of the tourists passing through Meilan Airport by offering

quality services and rich variety of duty-free commodities.

In recent years, benefited from seamless mutual cooperation, the
current operating area of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop
has been expanded to 5,227 square meters from 2,200 square
meters at business inception. The operating area of Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop will be further increased when the West
Gallery commences operation. The sales performance of Meilan
Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop increased from RMBO0.38 billion
in 2012 to RMBO0.92 billion in 2014, and the sales amount of duty-
free goods was recorded at RMBO0.67 billion in the first half of
2015. It is expected that the sales target of RMB1 billion will be
achieved in 2015.

Both parties acknowledge that the win-win situation will be
reached through sustainably perfect integration of resources
from the airport and the duty-free shop under the basis of mutual
benefits in the future such that the interests of the companies and
their shareholders will be safeguarded. Therefore, both parties will
try to reach the Duty-Free Contracts at arm’s length basis as soon
as possible.
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PROSPECTS FOR THE SECOND HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of 2015, statistics from the IATA showed that
benefiting from the continuous low price of crude oil internationally
and recovery of the global economy, the global air transportation
industry is expected to gain further improved net profit of
US$25 billion in 2015, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 25%. However, the serious incidents happened in
TransAsia Airways from Taiwan and the Germanwings have, to a
certain extend, struck a blow to the annual profit of the aviation
industry.

During the first half of 2015, in face of the unfavourable factors
including sluggish domestic economy and the pressure of
economic downturn, various indexes of the civil aviation and
transportation industry still maintained uplifting momentum. Both
the total transportation turnover and passenger transportation
turnover increased over 12.5% with development quality of the
industry significantly enhanced. With the development paces
of international routes faster than domestic routes, Middle and
Western China faster than those in the Eastern area, and branch
lines faster than main lines, the market imbalance will be further
improved. All in all, the uncertainties in global economy still exist,
while it is less possible to see a burst of soaring demand in aviation
industry. With the international crude oil price lingering in low
level, the scale of economy of the air transportation industry will
experience persistent increase. The profitability of the aviation
industry of China is expected to rise significantly in 2015.

The Group considers that, in the second half of 2015, along with
the execution of the State’s “Belt and Road Initiative” and the
construction of international tourist island in Hainan in full swing,
and the sustained relief of the offshore duty-free policies, there
will be stable operation of both international and domestic routes
of Meilan Airport and healthy growth in major indexes such as
annual passenger throughput. In terms of operation management,
the Company will focus on “procedure management” and “risk
control”, and continue to implement emergency alert mechanism
and safety performance management. Meanwhile, it will rectify
its plan of becoming a SKYTRAX five star airport and try its best
effort to develop its soft power. In addition to ensuring safety and
service quality, the Group will conduct cost control and generate
new income sources so as to maintain annual profit level and strive
for fruitful return to shareholders.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend payment of an interim
dividend of RMB0.120 per share (tax inclusive) on or before
Wednesday, 23 December 2015 to shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the Company’s register of members on
Friday, 13 November 2015 at the extraordinary general meeting to
be held on Friday, 30 October 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s register of members will be closed from
Wednesday, 30 September 2015 to Friday, 30 October 2015
(both days inclusive), during which time no transfer of shares will
be registered. To attend and vote at the extraordinary general
meeting, all instruments of transfer, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and form of transfer shall be delivered to the
Company’s share registrar and transfer office, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, located at Room 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29
September 2015.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from Sunday,
8 November 2015 to Friday, 13 November 2015, during which
time no transfer of shares will be registered. To qualify for the
entitlement of the interim dividend, all instruments of transfer,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and form of
transfer shall be delivered to the Company’s share registrar and
transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, located at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 November 2015. Subject to approval
at the extraordinary general meeting, the interim dividend will be
paid on Wednesday, 23 December 2015.

MATERIAL LITIGATION OR ARBITRATION

The Group had not involved in any material litigation or arbitration
from 1 January 2015 to 30 June 2015.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises eleven Directors. During the period from 1
January 2015 to 30 June 2015, changes in the directorship of the
Company are as follows:

Mr. Zhang Hao had taken over the role of executive director of
Mr. Liang Jun from 16 February 2015, with a term of 3 years. His
appointment was approved and ratified at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 16 February 2015.

Mr. He Linji had taken over the role of independent non-executive
director of Mr. Xu Bailing from 18 May 2015, with a term of 3
years. His appointment was approved and ratified at an annual
general meeting held on 18 May 2015.

From 30 June 2015 to the date of this interim report, changes in
the directorship of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Gao Jian had taken over the role of executive director of
Mr. Zhang Hao from 3 July 2015, with a term of 3 years. His
appointment was approved and ratified at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 3 July 2015.

BIOGRAPHIES OF NEWLY APPOINTED DIRECTORS

Mr. He Linji, age 58, graduated from Hainan University (&E X
&) in economic law (undergraduate course) in December 1999
and graduated from Wuhan University (B2 AZ) in economic
law (postgraduate course) in December 2000. He is a third-
grade senior judge (ZHEAEE) recognized by the Supreme
People’s Court in the PRC in August 2006. He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 18 May
2015.
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Mr. He has extensive experience in the field of law. He served
successively as the vice president and the president of Haikou
Military Court of Guangzhou Military Area (/M % [&)& O F £45k)
from January 1992 to August 1998. He also successively held the
positions of the deputy chief of discipline inspections group, the
director of supervisory office and the presiding judge of case filing
chamber and member of judicial committee of Haikou Intermediate
People’s Court (A MHHFARZERT) from September 1998 to
February 2004, respectively. Mr. He was the president of the
People’s Court of Longhua District, Haikou (&AM ER ARE
f) from March 2004 to August 2010. Subsequently, he served
as a minister-level judge (IEEHFEHE) of Haikou Intermediate
People’s Court from September 2010 to September 2013. He has
been full time member of judicial committee of Haikou Intermediate
People’s Court since October 2013.

Mr. He has not held any other directorships in listed pubic
companies in the last three years and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company or substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

The remuneration of Mr. He as director will be determined and
paid out according to the remuneration policies approved at the
AGM of the Company.

Mr. Gao Jian, aged 34, graduated from the Civil Aviation University
of China (FFEIRM KAL), majored in electronic information. He
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 3 July
2015.

Mr. Gao has extensive experience in the management of human
resources and corporate governance. He served as a secretary
in the text conference and assistant to secretary of the board
of directors of HNA Group Co., Ltd. (BfiEBEBR A F]) (the
“HNA Group”) from October 2003 to November 2005 and from
November 2005 to August 2007,respectively. He also served as
the head of secretary office, director of office and deputy director
of office of HNA Group from August 2007 to June 2008, from June
2008 to December 2008 and from December 2008 to June 2010,
respectively. Mr. Gao served as director of human resources and
vice president of Jinhai Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. (£/8%E LK%
BRAR]) from June 2010 to September 2014 and from October
2011 to March 2015, respectively.
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Mr. Gao has not held any other directorships in listed pubic
companies in the last three years and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company or substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Gao, being the director nominated by shareholders of related
parties, will not enjoy any allowance for holding the position, but
will receive appropriate wages depending on his specific duties in
the Company.

CHANGE OF MEMBERS IN SUB-COMMITTEES OF THE
BOARD

Since Mr. Xu Bailing no longer served as an independent non-
executive director of the Company, he ceased to be chairman of
the audit committee, chairman of the nomination committee and
member of the strategic committee of the Board correspondingly.

Mr. Deng Tianlin, the independent non-executive director of the
Company, had taken over the role of Mr. Xu Bailing to be chairman
of the audit committee.

Mr. He Linji, the independent non-executive director of the
Company, replaced Mr. Xu Bailing to be chairman of the
nomination committee and member of the strategic committee.

Their appointments were approved at the 15th meeting of the fifth
session of the Board on 4 June 2015.

CHANGE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Based on the Company’s actual needs, Mr. Gao Jian duly
assumed the position of vice standing executive of the Company
from 30 March 2015, while Mr. Wen Jiang was appointed as vice
president of the Company with effective from 30 March 2015.
Their appointment were approved at the 13rd meeting of the fifth
session of the Board on 30 March 2015.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company held the 2012 Annual General Meeting on 27 May
2013, where the “Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration
Packages for the Directors and Supervisors of the Company in
2013” was considered and approved. It provided that Directors
and supervisors nominated by shareholders of related parties
would not enjoy allowance for the position from the year of 2013,
but will receive appropriate wages depending on their specific
duties in the Company.

REMUNERATION OF COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xing Zhoujin, being the company secretary nominated by
shareholders of related parties, will not enjoy corresponding
allowance for holding the position, but will receive appropriate
wages depending on his specific duties in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2015, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 473,213,000, of which:
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, so far as known to the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons
(other than the Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the HK Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”); or, who were,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at the general meetings of any other member of the
Group, or had any option in respect of such capital; or would be
required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

DOMESTIC SHARES
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Haikou Meilan International Beneficial owner Corporate 237,500,000(L) 96.43% 50.19%
Airport Company Limited EnES a3
(Note 1)
BAEHBEBEESEREEAR]
(P5E1)
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H SHARES

HAL

Percentage of

Percentage of

Number of H shares total issued
Names of shareholders Type of interests ordinary shares issued share capital
EE BT EE BT
RER B ekl e HER B2t BRATD
Zhang Gaobo (Note 2) Interest of controlled 94,343,000(L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Gaobo(Fff3E2) corporations
g I UNGIE:
Zhang Zhiping (Note 2) Interest of controlled 94,343,000(L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Zhiping (Fif7£2) corporations
I NGIE:
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group  Interest of controlled 94,343,000(L) 41.58% 19.94%
Limited (Note 2) corporations
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group — S2#% 5|2 A2
Limited (Ff3E2)
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited Interest of controlled 94,343,000(L) 41.58% 19.94%
(Note 2) corporations
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited 5242 %12 A 2s
(P%E2)
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Beneficial owner 94,343,000(L) 41.58% 19.94%
Limited (Note 2) ERBEEA
Oriental Patron Resources Investment
Limited (Ff5E2)
UBS AG (Note 3) Beneficial owner, security 29,476,400(L) 12.99% 6.23%
UBS AG (Fif33) interests in shares and
interests of controlled
corporations
EREAA  HROBAE
R KX EHI A RS
Beneficial owner 8,000(S) 0.00% 0.00%

EaHEA
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Percentage of

Percentage of

Number of H shares total issued
Names of shareholders Type of interests ordinary shares issued share capital
BT HE BT
RREH R EBREE HR B 2t BERABED
UBS Group AG (Note 4) Security interests in shares 29,476,400(L) 12.99% 6.23%
UBS Group AG (Fff&F4) and interest of controlled
corporations
R FHERE R R
XA TER
Interest of controlled 8,000(S) 0.00% 0.00%
corporations
XA TR
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Fff3F5) corporations
XA TR
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 5) Investment manager 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Fff35) RELE
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Fund L.P. (Note 5) corporations
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity SRR RS
Fund L.P.(}f3E5)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
(Note 5) corporations
Pacific Aliance Equity Partners Limited S22 #] 2 Al
(PitE5)
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Investment manager 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Limited (Note 5) REKE
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management
Limited (FiE5)
PAG Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%

PAG Holdings Limited (F{5E5)

corporations
RGN AR
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Percentage of

Percentage of

Number of H shares total issued
Names of shareholders Type of interests ordinary shares issued share capital
HE BT BT
RERERE R ERREA HER B DL BRABEDL
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Ff5¥5) corporations
eI UNGIEEa
Pacific Alliance Investment Management  Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Limited (Note 5) corporations
Pacific Alliance Investment Management S 1EH| A Rl#EZ
Limited (Ff5E5)
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Walden Ventures Limited (Fff5) EREEA
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Beneficial owner and security 18,164,508(L) 8.01% 3.84%
(Note 6) interest in shares
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft EnlB ARROBEREER
GEG)
Greenwoods Asset Management Investment manager 13,844,000(L) 6.10% 2.93%
Limited (Note 7) RERE
Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited (Fff 7£7)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 8) Beneficial owner and 13,607,488(L) 5.99% 2.88%
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Fff58) custodian corporation/
approved lending agent
EREEARFE LR/
RARHREA
Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. Investment manager 11,387,747(L) 5.02% 2.41%

(Note 9)

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ.
(FI=¥9)
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Notes:

10.

Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited is a company
established in the PRC and is a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Zhang Gaobo and Zhang Zhiping held 49% and 51% interests in Oriental
Patron Financial Group Limited, respectively. Oriental Patron Financial Group
Limited held 95% interests in Oriental Patron Financial Services Group
Limited. 100% interests of Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited was
wholly-owned by Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited.

Among the 29,476,400 shares in the Company, UBS AG was deemed to
hold 6,833,000 shares through its security interest in those shares and held
8,000 shares as beneficial owner. UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.A.,
UBS Global Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd and UBS Global Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Limited were all wholly-owned by UBS AG, and
beneficially held 17,569,100 shares, 2,164,300 shares and 2,902,000 shares
in the Company, respectively.

UBS Group AG held 96.64% equity interest in UBS AG. For further details,
please refer to Note 3 above.

PAG Holdings Limited held 99.17% interests in Pacific Alliance Group Limited,
which in turn held 90% interests in Pacific Alliance Investment Management
Limited.

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 52.53% interests in
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited. Pacific Alliance Equity Partners
Limited held 100% interests in ARC Capital Partners Limited. ARC Capital
Partners Limited was deemed to be interested in 32,788,500 shares by virtue
of its capacity as investment manager. ARC Capital Holdings Limited is a
company controlled by ARC Capital Partners Limited pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO. ARC Capital Holdings Limited held 46.67% interests in Walden
Ventures Limited, which in turn held 14.45% interests in H shares of the
Company.

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 100% interest in
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited. Pacific Alliance Group
Asset Management Limited was deemed to be interested in 32,788,500
shares by virtue of its capacity as investment manager. Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. is a company controlled by Pacific Alliance Group Asset
Management Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. held 36.67% interests in Walden Ventures Limited,
which was in turn held 14.45% interests in H shares of the Company.

Among the 18,164,508 shares in the Company, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
was deemed to hold 18,161,000 shares as person having securities interests in
shares and held 3,508 shares as beneficial owner.

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited was wholly owned by Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited, which in turn was held 81% by Jiang
Jinzhi. Greenwoods Asset Management Limited held 13,844,000 shares by
virtue of its capacity as investment manager.

Among the 13,607,488 shares in the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co.
was deemed to hold 12,963,588 shares as custodian corporation/approved
lending agent and held 643,900 shares as beneficial owner.

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. held 11,387,747 shares in the Company by
virtue of its capacity as investment manager.

(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.

BOXHEREBEHRSERETARNETBEREAKL - BAARZ
R -

Zhang Gaobo }Zhang Zhiping#: B #§4 Oriental Patron Financial
Group Limited 49% £51%# 4 © Oriental Patron Financial Group
Limited#% 75 Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited 95%
#25 ° Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited2 & #H
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited 2 100%H) 25 -

AR 29,476,400 (& & 15 R - UBS AGIA E R Z Z MR 1H 8
R EEWIR AR A6833000K KM - URIEAE =
A A5 HE 8,000 ik 17 # 25 - UBS AG % & ¥ A UBS Fund
Services (Luxembourg) S.A. * UBS Global Asset Management
(Singapore) Ltd &2UBS Global Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Ltd » MZERA DB E = EAB AR R 17,669,100 A1
2,164,300/% % 15 % 2,902,000/% f% {5 °

UBS Group AG#AUBS AG 96.64% %1 - # —##HEE2H
ECPEES ©

PAG Holdings Limited# & Pacific Aliance Group Limited, 2 99.17%

Mg &5 APacific Aliance Investment Management Limited
90% M °

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited ¥ A Pacific
Alliance Equity Partners Limited 52.53%# % ° Pacific Alliance
Equity Partners Limited 3 & ARC Capital Partners Limited
100%# 5 - ARC Capital Partners Limited #18 &I & &
|55 #H532,788,500k ks - RIFEFRBEKRIIE
XVE + ARC Capital Holdings Limited & — f& F1 ARC Capital
Partners Limited3Z | #J/2 7] ¢ ARC Capital Holdings Limited#¥
BWalden Ventures Limited 46.67%# % + fiWalden Ventures
Limited IFs B AR A1 H R 14.45% R % o

Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited 7143 /A Pacific
Alliance Group Asset Management Limited 100%## 4 © Pacific
Alliance Group Asset Management Limited 1 1% & bA £ % &
KI2 5 1) #5H 32,788,500 iRt tE 2 - IRIBEE 5 R EIE KD
EXVES + Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P.&—
1 Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited % &/ &9
‘A ° Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. 5B Walden
Ventures Limited 36.67%#%: + Walden Ventures Limited £l
FEARRAIHR14.45% 5 ©

WA R A 2 18,164,508 % Bk 10 & F  Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft{E B ¥ IR 15 B IRFE w2 A T MR ER
518,161,000/ %0 - RIERE =S AMHEFH3,608M %

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited i Greenwoods Asset
Management Holdings LimitedZ & # 4 * ifiGreenwoods Asset
Management Holdings Limited 8] B8 Jiang Jinzhi % & 81% ©
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited A& B EEH FDEH
13,844,000/ 8% 15 °

MARAR]18,607,488% B 15 & # + JPMorgan Chase & Co. &
EAFERE Mg HRIEA MR IER 512,963,588 % i%
5 REAEAERHES AT E643,9000 1% -

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. Al H £ A% & I8 1) & 15 if
BB ARAR1,387, 747RAR1D -

LR (S) PRI FKIFRE S%k R °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, so far as known to
the Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company,
no other person (not being the Directors, supervisors, and chief
executives of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the HK Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group, or had any option in
respect of such capital; or would be required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, no Directors, supervisors and chief executive
of the Company have any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which would be required to be recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or required to be notified to the Company and the HK Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

THE RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES TO PURCHASE SHARES

None of the Director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company
or their respective spouses or children under the age of 18 was
granted any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold,
redeemed or cancelled any of the listed securities of the Company
during the six months ended 30 June 2015.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has, together with the management,
reviewed the interim report, including the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed matters
relating to auditing, internal control, financial reporting and non-
exempt continuing connected transactions, including review of the
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial information for
the six months ended 30 June 2015.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 3.10(1),
RULE 3.10(2) AND RULE 3.21 OF LISTING RULES

As of 30 June 2015, there were four independent non-executive
Directors in the Board. As of 30 June 2015, the audit committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, including
one personnel with appropriate professional qualifications of
accounting and the membership of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transaction by the
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standards
of the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiries with the Directors of the Company,
all of the Directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transaction during the six months ended 30
June 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to complying with all the rules
prescribed by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
the HK Stock Exchange and regulations of other competent
authorities. For the six months ended 30 June 2015, the Company
had complied with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and
met with all reasonable governance and disclosure requirements.
The Company will continue to improve its corporate governance
and enhance its transparency to shareholders.

BRZEY
ERZEGCHAYTREENT RS (RE S EEA
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R 321K 15

H L2015 6A30H » ARAIEE=SRIENRIE L IE
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H-ZBYIFNTESHER  EhpiE—2AEE
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THE BOARD

As at the date of this Report, the Board of the Company

comprised the following persons:

Executive Directors

WANG Zhen (Chairman)

YANG Xiaobin (President)

GAOQ Jian (Vice Standing Executive)

ZHANG Peihua (Vice-president and Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors
HU Wentai (Vice Chairman)
CHAN Nap Kee, Joseph
YAN Xiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
DENG Tianlin

FUNG Ching, Simon

George F. MENG

HE Liniji

By order of the Board

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited
Wang Zhen

Chairman and Executive Director

Haikou, the PRC
15 September 2015
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
N/ g S ==

ek ARIEERBER

As at 30 June 2015 20156 A30H

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20156 2014%F 20156 2014
6A30R 12A31H 6A30A 12A31R
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
i At A A
ASSETS Note(s) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
BE it (REFT) (f5%3t) (REFT) (18 %3T)
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and in hand EHES 4(1) 211 1,632,316,944  1884,557,387  1,625,195,284  1,880,585,089
Accounts receivable FEYER 4(2) 72) 190,297,562 120,702,313 189,088,476 120,097,158
Advances to suppliers AfFE 3,130,944 1,763,323 2,749,937 1,581,246
Interest receivable ibeilkst 2,438,655 2,269,667 2,438,655 2,269,667
Other receivables Hit R 9,207,503 4,560,931 9,823,510 5,665,259
Inventories IE3 234,484 36,417 234,484 36,417
Other current assets HitmEEE 6,190,364 785,832 6,188,569 784,037
Total current assets RBEESH 1,843,816,456  2,014,675870  1,835718,915  2,011,018,873
Non-current assets FRBEE
Long-term receivables RS 4(3) [(3) 380,000,000 380,000,000 380,000,000 380,000,000
Long-term equity investments RERERE 4(4),13(1)
J4),+=(1) 1,138,946,126  1,128,146,862  1,149,146,126  1,138,346,862
Fixed assets BEEE 4(5) %) 1,029,900,235  1,040,314,740  1,025,394,485  1,036,036,144
Construction in progress fERIE 4(6) 75(6) 259,463,293 122,543,328 259,463,293 122,543,328
Intangible assets By AR 47) 9(7) 179,695,785 181,681,666 179,695,785 181,681,666
Deferred tax assets REMEHEAE 4(8) 78) 12,965,038 13,156,516 12,965,038 13,156,516
Other non-current assets At ERBEAE 4(9) 29(9) 860,442,391 841,228,194 860,442,391 841,228,194
Total non-current assets FRBEES 3,861,412,868 3,707,071,306 3,867,107,118 3,712,992,710
Total assets BES 5705,229,324  5,721,747,176  5702,826,083  5,724,011,583
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets

BHMARIEERER

As at 30 June 2015 201546 H30H
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20155 20144
64308 12A318 64308 12A31A
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
i =i 27 2R
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Note(s) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
BERER it (REHT) (&%) (REET) (&=3t)
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable R 4(10) 75(10) 17,157,549 15,234,088 15,846,265 14,566,343
Advances from customers FANFA 4(11) (1) 7,434,272 9,290,271 7,372,371 8,702,370
Employee benefits payable FERBIEM 4(12) 79(12) 16,577,418 24,119,398 13,333,538 17,025,059
Taxes payable EXHE 4(13) 1(13) 30,777,234 44,688,696 29,053,559 44,516,193
Interest payable FERAE 4(14) 7(14) 18,876,873 50,416,960 18,876,873 50,416,960
Dividends payable FERTARF 4(15) m(15) 19,089,654 499,500 19,089,654 499,500
Other payables AR 4(16) 7(16) 153,957,975 114,236,355 186,631,939 144,395,326
Current portion of non-current liabilities ~ —FREIBRFERBEE  417) 5(17) 520,559,464 444,673,972 520,559,464 444,673,972
Total current liabilities nBaESH 784,430,439 708,159,240 810,763,663 724,795,723
Non-current liabilities FREERE
Long-term borrowings RHES 4(18) 74(18) 966,684,437 1,245,963,758 966,684,437 1,245,963,758
Corporate bonds Nl 4(19 B(19) 794,274,518 793,619,030 794,274,518 793,619,030
Long-term payables REERFR 4(20) F9/20) 55,249,828 66,295,336 55,249,828 66,295,336
Long-term employee benefits payable REEARTHMH 1,717,634 2,273,043 1,717,634 2,273,043
Other non-current liabllities At EREa R 17,955,734 19,082,600 17,955,734 19,082,600
Total non-current liabilities FrRBeEa: 1,835,882,151  2,127,233767  1,835,882,151 2,127,233,767
Total liabilities BERH 2,620,312,590  2,830,393,007  2,646,645,814  2,852,029,490
Shareholders’ equity RRER
Share capital R 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000
Capital surplus YN 668,585,780 668,585,780 668,585,780 668,585,780
Surplus reserve BHLNE 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231
Undistributed profits RABAE 4(21) m(21) 1,676,882,958  1,487,909,356  1,667,987,208  1,483,789,082
Total equity attributable to GRNADARR
shareholders of the Company B#A: 3,065,075,969 2,876,102,367 3,056,180,219 2,871,982,093
Minority interests DERERER 19,840,765 15,251,802 - -
Total equity ERA 3,084,916,734  2,891354169  3,056,180,219  2,871,982,093
Total liabilities and equity EERERGH 5705,229,324 5721747176 5702,826,033  5724,011,583

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function:
PBEEEA: FEBIIEHBEEA:

Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua

£ RimMEE
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Person in charge of accounting department:
EiHIBERARA:
Shang Min
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements

N3 UL
S /NI I DES

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

Six months ended 30 June

BHZ6H300 1L6f8 A
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 2014F 2015% 2014F
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
abt aff F A7)
Item Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
L] i (REE:T) (REF) (REEE:T) (REE)
Revenue =E1ION 4(22),13(2)
J(22), +=(2) 571,693,772 457,063,933 489,777,733 414,677,310
Less: Operating costs W BERA 4(22),15(2)
7522),+=(2) (215,574,343) (154,831,432) (148,685,972) (126,028,685)
Taxes and surcharges BERS RN (10,835,228) (8,295,714) (10,505,474) (8,021,202)
General and administrative expenses ERER 4(22),15(2)
122, +=(2) (26,581,577) (28,254,506) (24,707,357) (26,449,640)
Finance expenses - net MBER-FE 4(23) 19(23) (11,363,651) (63,870,889) (11,143,296) (53,758,722)
(Provision)/reversal of asset EERBE(ER)/
impairment &[] (682,149) - (682,149) -
Add:  Investment income m: REks 4(24) F(24) 10,799,264 11,812,933 10,799,264 11,812,933
Including: Share of profit in e HBE R
associates B 10,799,264 11,812,933 10,799,264 11,812,933
Operating profit )] 317,456,093 223,624,325 304,852,749 212,231,994
Add: Non-operating income i EEMIA 882,177 1,076,919 869,930 1,068,393
Less: Non-operating expenses W BRI (6,072,135) (250,934) (6,065,154) (218,945)
Including: Losses on disposal He  ERBEERE
of non-current assets ‘X (5,653,066) (184,323) (5,653,066) (184,323)
Total profit Filper 312,266,135 224,450,310 299,657,525 213,066,442
Less: Income tax expenses W FEHER 4(25) F2s) (75,641,170) (63,801,605) (72,396,999) (60,940,581)
Net profit FHE 236,624,965 170,648,705 221,260,526 162,125,861
Attributable to shareholders of FERANFREMN
the Company 8 232,036,002 166,467,595 227,260,526 162,125,861
Minority interest DYREEE 4,588,963 4,181,110 - =
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements

BHRARRMER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6A30H1L6{EA
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20148 20158 20144
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
i =i N AT
ltem Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
EH i3 (REET) (REE) (REET) (REH:T)
Earnings per share Bk
Basic earnings per share EAGRhe 4(26) 79.26) 0.49 0.35 N/A FEF N/A N
Diluted eamnings per share RESHRYE 4(26) 79/26) 0.49 0.35 N/A FE N/A R iE
Other comprehensive income after tax A& AR FTER
YEARNFE - = - =
Total comprehensive income malasE 236,624,965 170,648,705 227,260,526 162,125,861
Attributable to shareholders FENRDAREH
of the Company FelREE 232,036,002 166,467,595 227,260,526 162,125,861
Minority interest GERDHREH
GElmREE 4,588,963 4,181,110 - =

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

Person in charge of accounting function:

PEEEA: FEEIFIEBEEA:
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua
£ RimEE
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BiBIEREEA:
Shang Min
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Person in charge of accounting department:




Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements

et R ARIEERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6530A 68 A
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 2014%F 2015% 2014%F
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&t =it ] A
Item Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HH it (REHET) (REEHHT) (REEF) (REEE:)
Cash flows from operating activites ~ S&FHELNELTE
Cash received from sales of goods HERM  RESHEWE
or rendering of services Be 518,443,168 428,127,233 431,530,664 381,885,207
Cash received relating to WEEpELSSEBHERN
other operating activities e 103,383,605 105,180,856 103,223,521 104,964,656
Sub-total of cash inflows RSB S A\t 621,826,773 533,308,089 534,754,185 486,849,863
Cash paid for goods and services BEAR  BRAELAN
1e (146,276,428) (106,882,234) (89,106,251) (81,070,017)
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees S T4 T b\ |z A T 57
mRe (67,325,869) (84,576,155) (47,864,720) (68,817,971)
Payments of taxes and surcharges XMEENE (110,208,494) (71,795,220 (105,036,726) (67,030,551)
Cash paid relating to other operating THEMELEES
activities BENES (82,468,000) (129,714,750 (81,071,545) (129,423,728)
Sub-total of cash outflows EEEHE AT (406,278,791)  (392,068,359) (323,079,242  (346,342,267)
Net cash flows from operating activities & EEELHH 2
e R 215,547,982 140,339,730 211,674,943 140,507,596
Cash flows from investing activities REZHELNELRE
Net cash received from disposal of REETEEKEA
fixed assets REEE 38,857 530,122 38,857 530,122
Net cash paid for acquisition of fixed BRETEE EWEE
assets, intangible assets and other MEMRHEES TR
long term assets Be (109,481,299) (487,143,149) (108,757,733 (486,728,378)
Net cash flows from investing activities R & EEE£H)
ReREFE (109,442,442) (486,613,027) (108,718,876) (486,198,256)
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements
aHRAREHEERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6A30A L6fEA
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20145 20155 2014F
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
G bt G A
ltem Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
ER ir (REEST) (REEE) (REET) (REE)
Cash flows from financing activites ~ ZEEFHEANELHE
Cash recelved from borrowings EREBZANHRL (209,946,000) (54,545,400) (209,946,000) (54,545,400)
Cash payments for distribution of dividends ATRRRF| - B & RIS
or profits and interest expenses T RfEE (129,951,860) (116,415,835) (129,951,860) (116,415,835)
Cash payments relating to other financing  Z{TEMEEEEE BN
activities Be (21,866,935) (66,822,327) (21,866,935) (66,822,327)
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ E&EHELH)
RenmEss (361,764,795) (237,783,562) (361,764,795) (237,783,562)
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgBiReNyE
changes on cash 3,418,812 2,884,373 3,418,923 2,886,513
Net decrease in cash BEFRIE (252,240,443) (581,172,486) (255,389,805) (580,587,709)
Add: Cash at beginning of period n: BIREHE 1,884,557,387 2,998,410,987 1,880,585,089 2,994,134,087
Cash at end of period BRELHE 1,632,316,944 2,417,238,451 1,625,195,284 2,413,546,328

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

PBRERA: FERIILIEAERA:
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua
£ SRAmEE
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Person in charge of accounting function:

&I IS MR E R TS MR AREL D

Person in charge of accounting department:
i EIBERRA:
Shang Min
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

FIRRERZE T &

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (F&45)zFEH5)

P BEEMBARKET)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

BERRLAANRRER
Total
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders’
Item Note(s) capital reserves reserves profits interests equity
&R i i BRLNR BHOE  AOEAE  JEREER  RRERST
4(21) 1)
Balances at 1 January 2014 0141 A1RENGR 473213000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,233.993,928 16,091,257 2,669,343,113
Movements for the period ended HZE201456A30R 16(EA
30 June 2014 IRLEeE
Total comprehensive income Galmes
Net profit FHE - - - 166,467,595 4,181,110 170,648,705
Qther comprehensive income Efrtralis - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income GRlGEEA - - - 166,467,595 4181,110 170,648,705
Profit distribution HEk
Profit distributed to shareholders HREHNHE 4(21) B 21) - - - (39,730,000) - (39,730,000)
Balances at 30 June 2014 014F6 A0 BRHE 473213000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,360,731,518 20,272,367 2,800,261,818
Balances at 1 January 2015 201581 A1 RS 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,487,909,356 15,251,802 2,891,354,169
Movements for the period ended HZ2015%6A30A 16EAH
30 June 2015 HERESE
Total comprehensive income GakneE
Net profit iy - - - 232,036,002 4,588,963 236,624,965
Other comprehensive income EthrAliz - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FeliaEgas - - - 232,036,002 4588963 236,624,965
Profit distrioution MBS
Profit istributed to shareholders HRRRADE 421) By - - - (43,062,400) - (43,062,400)
Balances at 30 June 2015 20156 30 BiReRE 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,676,882,958 19,840,765 3,084,916,734

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

PEEEA: FTEEFTIIENREAEA:
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua
By =) Mz

Person in charge of accounting function:

1R P A 75 3R P RE R R S SRR O AR R BB 2

Person in charge of accounting department:
BITHEREA:

Shang Min

DE=
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Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
NA IR R Em SR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

Total
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders’
capital reserves reserves profits equity
Item Note(s) R BRDE BHAR AOENE  RRERS:
15 it 421) Be1)
Balances at 1 January 2014 N14E1R1BENBE 478,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,230,136,318 2,649,394 251
Movements for the period ended HZE2014F6A30R L6(H A
30 June 2014 %H;ﬁ@ﬁ@
Total comprehensive income LAkaeE
Net profit FHE - - - 162,125,861 162,125,861
Qther comprehensive income Bt Al - - - - -
Total comprehensive income Galiaaga: = = = 162,125,861 162,125,861
Profit distribution HMENE
Proft distributed to sharcholders HRANAR 401 BeY) - - - [O730000  (39,730000)
Balances at 30 June 2014 2014E6R30BEREE 478,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,302,532,179  2,771,790,112
Balances at 1 January 2015 201551 1B EEE 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,483,789,082  2,871,982,093
Movements for the period ended Ef@ot 5E6A30A 1E6(E A H
30 June 2015 EREDE
Total comprehensive income FalmeE
Net profit R - - - 221,260,526 221,260,526
Other compreensive income Eiir Al - - - - -
Total comprehensive income GANGEEAH - - - 227,260,526 227,260,526
Profit distrioution HEsE
Proft distributed to shareholders HRAHAR 421) B2 - - - 30624000 (43,062,400)
Balances at 30 June 2015 20156 A30R BIREE 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,304,231 1,667,987,208  3,056,180,219

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial 12 {ff Bt 7 SRR FI 1 BB R &= AKX D o
statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function: Person in charge of accounting department:
PREEA: FEBIFTIEABEEA: EHBREA:

Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua Shang Min

=] SRAmE fel B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ZA7 ﬁ 2
B 755 e 3% B 5
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, Z201546 A30H [t/ & A HAfE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

1

General information

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited (formerly known as
“Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited”) (the
“Company”) was established as a joint stock company with
limited liability in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2000. The legal address and headquarters
of the Company is at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC.
The Company’s H-shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 18 November 2002.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
are mainly engaged in the operation of the Meilan Airport in
Hainan Province, the PRC (the “Meilan Airport”) and certain
ancillary commercial businesses. The parent company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Haikou
Meilan International Airport Co., Ltd. (“Haikou Meilan”), a
state-owned enterprise established in the PRC with limited
liability.

On 5 January 2015, as approved by the extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders, the Company changed its

name to HNA Infrastructure Company Limited.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 August 2015.

These interim financial statements have not been audited.

NCIE-%N P

BMEMBRMNBRIR(FIEA [EREERHEEK
WSRO ARAR ] ATEBAQA]) B
KR2000F12 A28 HEH 2E A R FEFNE (AR
BIRREDKIORDERAT o AR A Z i
st AR BEREAEOM o AARKRER
2002511 A18HEBBHME R HFAERENE £
MRS o RARMFRARATER[AEE]H
TEEHACETRSEEFOMERIES (LA
T [ EEEE DUARE THBEmEER - X
RAMT AR REKESFABEFBEKRINES
TEFOEHHEBEEKISERET QR (A NEE
EOxEE]) -

R2015%1 A5H @ EIRERRIASHE - AR F]
BEZASMERKROHERAT o

AU BEREABAARARREZEEZTLR201548 21 Hilt
SR o

AR HREA IS R R G B|ET ©

201550k | EmEBRKRGERAE 45



Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

2

46

Summary of significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates

2.1

2.2

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |

Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the Basic Standard of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, specific accounting standards
and other relevant regulations (hereafter collectively
referred to as the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises” or “CAS”) issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on or
after 15 February 2006. The financial statements were
disclosed in accordance with CAS 32 “Interim Financial
Reporting” issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC, and the financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The accounting
policies applied are consistent with those of the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The financial statements were prepared on a going
concern basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting
estimates and key judgments applied based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. Except as described below, in preparing
these consolidated interim financial statements, the
significant judgements made by management in
applying the Group’s accounting policies and the
key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same
as those that applied to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

INTERIM REPORT 2015
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2.1 BIEIREAE R

AN B 75 3R 5% 1R FR B BR P A 2006 F 2 A 15 H
R UATR BRREI M B (D S S R AR — B AR
B ZIABe ERIREERE(ATE
IR DR - AP BBERIRE
BB M D EE ET R E 3258 — 1 A
MRS ) M ESEITSRABEEE - A5
HR FEEARE B 2014F E B S HREK — G5
o AU BHMEAFEAN S BREAER
RBL2014F E B B MR TR A 5T EUR
_@Z ®

AP BHRRIAFELLERER RS -

2.0 EEBH A FYE

AEERBEL CHRMEMESE - BIEHR
REBEMAETES @ HARANEZ SR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, Z201546 A30H [t/ & A HAfE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

FESHBREMS LT @)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies =
and accounting estimates (Continued)

2.2 BEEEI AT AL (&

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, the franchise agreements between
the Company and Haimian Haikou Meilan Airport Duty-
Free Shop Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop”)
in respect of the operation of duty-free shop in Meilan
Airport has been expired, the new agreements are in
the process of negotiation.

Taking into account the latest result of negotiation and
the intention of the two contractual parties in respect
of the revised rate of franchise fee charged by the
Company to Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop, the Group
has recognised the franchise fee income for the period
based on management’s best estimate on the charge
rate.

Taxation

(1)  The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to
the Group are set out below:

#HZE2015F6A30R * AARIEFGREOXE
BRERHEBRAR([EXBRBE]) @
REMETE RIS NE S R E 5
CEHREAREEE  ERMERERY
q:: o

REBEARBFEE RBUE S EAERAK
88 75 AN R [A) SR S0 B MR A R AT
ERZWEREERNER  EEEHRFF
REEERZWEBREERREMSS - LR
BUL AR TR AR ER AR 2 R S IR
A e

BiIE

(1)

AEBERNEEHRERERRIPRMAT

Category Tax base Tax rate
HE SRR IR B =
Corporate income tax (“CIT”)  Taxable income 25%
REMET FEANTH P15 58 25%

Value added tax (“VAT”)

Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is calculated
using the taxable sales amount multiplied by the
applicable tax rate less deductible input VAT
of current period)

6% or 17%

AR FE AN 3G (B RE (B AN TR KB TR e A SH & RE SR LUE A T R H0BR & 3 6%3%17%
AEEMAEERIENRETE)

Business tax Taxable turnover amount 5%

EER FEMT & 558 5%

City maintenance and
construction fee

VAT and business tax paid/payble

5% or 7%

YT MR R R AR ET N E ET TR 5%3%7%
Education surcharge VAT and business tax paid/payble 3%
A BN AN IS ET A TR 3%
Local education surcharge VAT and business tax paid/payable 2%
75 2B BTN BRI ET A S R R 2%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFS R

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z2015%46 A30H 1L/~ & A A
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4FIFEHS) - 2 3EE T AARKT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SRR/ IEE M EE

(1) Cash at bank and in hand (1) EXES

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014%12H31H

Cash in hand EFRES 37,549 134,357
Cash at bank RITFER 1,632,279,395 1,884,423,030

1,632,316,944 1,884,557,387

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s deposit in HNA Group M2015F6 A30H 17N BEE 7 B KB
Finance Co., Ltd. (“‘HNA Group Finance”, a related MBAERRR(IEMTHE ) ORITERR
party of the Group) amounted to RMB229,149,036 AR #229,149,0367C(2014F12 4311 -
(31 December 2014: RMB199,358,573). HNA Group 199,358,5737T) * & A Rl A IERIT & Bl
Finance is a non-bank financial institution. o

(2) Accounts receivable 2) [EMARF

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 20144F12H31H

Accounts receivable by nature FEUEBR IR E 85
— from aeronautical services —RERZEHERA 96,003,617 97,186,683
— from non-aeronautical services —RERIEM =MW A 98,815,120 27,354,656
194,818,737 124,541,339
Less: Provision for bad debts T SRR ZEAE (4,521,175) (3,839,026)
190,297,562 120,702,313
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R Pt

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

2) WA (&)

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

201564308 2014%F12A831H

Accounts receivable by customers B BR IR B P& D
— from third parties — B EE = T BR 3K 155,055,740 78,692,001
Less: Provision for bad debts W ERERS (4,521,175) (3,839,026)
150,534,565 74,852,975
— from related parties — FEUR BA RS 5 BR K 39,762,997 45,849,338
190,297,562 120,702,313

Credit terms granted to customers are determined on
an individual basis and reviewed by the management
with a general range from 1 to 3 months.

(@)  The ageing of accounts receivable is analysed as
follows:

AEBGRTRERPNERPHAKRERERRE
ERIEZE T —RA1E3@A -

(@) MEWERFIZE AR B B8 ARE ST
T

30 June 2015

31 December 2014

2015%6H30H 2014%12H31H

Within 90 days 90K IARA 131,416,939 104,971,482
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 55,769,911 5,790,303
181 to 365 days 181K £365K% 1,790,235 6,200,229
Over 365 days 365 KA £ 5,841,652 7,579,325
194,818,737 124,541,339

2015 EAsR &
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

SOt B E|RIFA M T2

(3) Long-term receivables (3) EHIEWE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 201412 H31H
Entrusted loan ZEER 380,000,000 380,000,000
As at 30 June 2015, long-term receivables represents R201596 A30R « REIBEFAASKER
the two-year entrusted loan of RMB380,000,000 BEMPBREK T SHEEAREEAR
the Group offered to Hainan Haidao Commercial AR BEAENRHAB _FHETXE
Management Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Commercial”, a related ;- & # R AR380,000,0007T - [EEF
party of the Group) through HNA Group Finance which FIZE 58% °
is at fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.
Long-term equity investments (4) EHRERE

(4)

Associates — Unlisted companies

31 December 2014

BERE—FLTRA]

Share of (loss)/
profit of
investees under

equity method 30 June 2015

RS EAREN
20145128318 FER 20156 H30H
(Note 4(24))
(Btztrm(24))
Haikou Decheng Industrial /8 0= #H 8 2% E
and Development Co., Ltd. BRAE([F01=
(“Haikou Decheng”) ED) 30,874,298 (3,131) 30,871,167
Hainan Airlines Airport VRIS IR (52 E))
Holding Group Company AR A 7 ([ /&
Limited (“HNA Airport B )) (HfaF)
Holdings”) (Note) 1,097,272,564 10,802,395 1,108,074,959
1,128,146,862 10,799,264 1,138,946,126

No significant restrictions on the repatriation of
investment income.

Note: The place of incorporation and business of HNA
Airport Holdings and its subsidiaries (the “HNA
Airport Group”) are in the PRC, and there is no
business relationship between the Group and

HNA Airport Group.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R Pt

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, Z201546 A30H [t/ & A HAfE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

N SOt EBREB ME®)

(5) Fixed assets (6) BlE&ZE
Office
Buildings and Machinery and equipment and
structures equipment Motor vehicles others Total
FER WARER
BEEY HEESE EHTH Hith &%
Cost JR(E
31 December 2014 2014%12831H 1,202,606,226 84,860,647 88,476,861 75,692,705 1,451,536,439
Increases in current  ZAREAIE AN
period
Acquisition RE = = 12,180,972 12,550,442 24,731,414
Transferred from CIP EZTi28 A = — — 468,354 468,354
Decreases in current  ZRERF
period
Disposal and other ~ [RE R E 4
decrease - (6,124,168) (3,168,861) (1,386,874) (10,679,903)
30 June 2015 20156 A30H 1,202,606,226 78,736,479 97,488,972 87,224,627 1,466,056,304
Accumulated ZEtHE
Depreciation
31 December 2014 201412 831H (317,458,310) (19,357,811) (30,886,518) (43,519,060) (411,221,699)
Increases in current AR HAHE A
period
Depreciation charged 5T (15,416,604) (5,789,264) (4,606,354) (4,110,128) (29,922,350)
Decreases in current  Z8EIE 4
period
Disposal and other BEREMRD
decrease - 1,655,514 2,322,475 1,009,991 4,987,980
30 June 2015 201546 A30H (332,874,914)  (23,491,561)  (33,170,397)  (46,619,197)  (436,156,069)
Net book value REEE
30 June 2015 20156 A30H 869,731,312 55,244,918 64,318,575 40,605,430 1,029,900,235
31 December 2014 201412 831H 885,147,916 65,502,836 57,590,343 32,073,645 1,040,314,740
20155 BB SR % sHERRAERAT 51



Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFS R

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

SOt B E|RIFA M T2

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(5) Fixed assets (Continued)

(a)

Depreciation of RMB29,689,916 and RMB232,434
have been charged to operating costs and general
and administrative expenses for the period (for the
six months ended 30 June 2014: RMB28,761,839
and RMB335,202, respectively).

The international terminal building and its
ancillary projects, have been completed
and put into use in 2013. As at 30 June
2015, the carrying amount of these assets is
RMB226,223,181 (31 December 2014: carrying
amount of RMB229,093,758, original cost of
RMB236,748,630), whose ownership certificates
were in the process of application (Note 7(5)(a)).

(6) Construction in progress

52

(5) BIEEZE(#)

(@)

REGFAEERANERERNTE
DRl A ANR#29,689,916 LA R AR
#032,434 T (H Z=201496 A30H It
618 A : » 5l A AR¥28,761,8397C
AR AR#335,2027T) °

RRARWBEBEMUGERIEETZ2EB
ER201BFHRAFH  EEEEHE
REFE MEMIEF - R20156F6A30H
ZEHoEEEENEEOEEAARE
226,223,181 (2014 12 A31H :
RAEEEAS AR 229,003,758 7T -
F{E & AR 236,748,6307T ) (Hi 5
+(5)(@)) °

6) HEZILIE

Including:
Transfer to Interest

Increase in fixed assets Accumulated capitalised Interest

31 December current in current interest incurrent  caplisation

2014 period period 30June2015  caplisation period rate
He A5

20145 PN-[PN 2015 EREBERER BHER KEER

12A31H NG EEEE 6A308 fLRFEE EBEALEHE BREMMLE

Terminal complex project  VART4RA B 98,979,369 90,266,669 - 189,246,038 102,137,717 37,498,576 6.27%

West Gallery expansion AEBRERETR

project 16,320,707 13,615,529 - 29,936,236 29,936,236 13,615,529 7.53%
Boarding bridge poject EHETE - 18,727,243 - 18,727,243 - -
Others Hit 7,243,252 14,778,878 (468,354) 21,553,776 - -
122,543,328 137,388,319 (468,354) 259,463,293 132,073,953 51,114,105
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4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(7)

Intangible assets

(7) HEIEEE

Land use right

T {E AR
Cost RE
30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014 201596 A30H Kk201412H31H 224,715,283
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH
31 December 2014 2014512 A31H (43,038,617)
Amortisation in current period N HAHE SH (1,985,881)
30 June 2015 201596 A30H (45,019,498)
Carrying amount BREFFE
30 June 2015 201596 A30H 179,695,785
31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 181,681,666
(a) Amortisation expenses of RMB1,985,881 (for the (a AHEFEEMNHEESBEAARK

six months ended 30 June 2014: RMB1,985,882)
were charged to operating costs in the current

period.

(b) The international terminal building and its
ancillary projects have been completed and
put into use in 2013. As at 30 June 2015, the
ownership certificates of the land use rights
(“LUR”) of this project with a carrying amount
of RMB43,528,232 (31 December 2014:
carrying amount of RMB43,932,520, original
cost of RMB45,078,000) were in the process of

application (Note 7(5)(a)).

1,985,881 T (E £20145E6 A30H It
618 A : AR#1,0858827T) @ 2%

PN ELZ

(b)) AARMWBERMUERBHEIRE
BER2013FH/RAFER - HEH L
HE FAREENEREFT - R2015F
6 A30H % T2 MR/ + thF A
BEEEEBELN A ARKA3,528,232 7T
(2014%12A31H : REEEHABA
R# 43,932,520 ' REAARE
45,078,0007%) (MizE£(5)(@)) °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(7)

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |

Intangible assets (Continued)

(©

As at 30 June 2015, LUR with a carrying
amount of RMB8,593,242 (31 December 2014:
carrying amount of RMB8,717,183, original
cost of RMB11,852,138) was pledged as
collateral for the Group’s long-term borrowings
of RMB1,375,560,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,529,750,000) (Note 4(18)).

As at 30 June 2015, LUR with a carrying amount
of RMB70,000,369 (31 December 2014: carrying
amount of RMB70,768,483, original cost of
RMB86,905,771) was pledged as collateral
for Haikou Meilan’s long-term borrowings
of RMB590,000,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB291,000,000) of which the Company is the
joint borrower.

The analysis of location and period of LUR is as
follows:

R HELBARET)

N SOt BHREAEMEE®)

(7) FEEEE (&)

(©

R2015F6 A30H * ARQRIREEE
B AR ¥8,503,242 70 (201412 A
318 : REEEAARMS 717,183
T RE A AR 11,852,138 L)
MLt FERE  ERITEARK
1,375,560,000 T #) 3= 7T & B fE SR A9 4K
¥ (2014F12A31H : A ARE
1,529,750,0007T ) (M 7EPH(18)) °

R2015F6 A30H * ARQRIREEE
B AR¥70,000,3697T (20144512 A
318 : lREEEAARKT0,768,483
7T RE A AR 86,905,771 L)
BT ERAE  ERBAEMAR
# 590,000,000 7t /) & 87 f& 3% A9 3K
Y (2014 F12 A31H : AR
291,000,0007T) * AR Al & 8 5K EY
HREEBHA °

3 fsE R A SR P AR M R K2 GE PR 9 AT 4B
T

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

20156 H30H 2014%F12H31H

Inside Mainland China — AL H R B R —
between 10 to 50 years 102504 123,877,056 56,623,807
over 50 years 505 A £ 55,818,729 125,057,859
179,695,785 181,681,666
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4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(8)

Deferred tax assets

(@) Deferred tax assets — before offset

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

8) BEEEHEE
(@) AREBFRELITFHEE

Six months ended 30 June

#HZ=6H30H LL61E A
2015 2014
20154 20144
Opening balance HARERRE 13,156,516 9,066,924
Recognised in the income statement A FE R A HER (191,478) (4,291,665)
Closing balance AR BR %8 12,965,038 4,775,259
(b) As at 30 June 2015, no deferred income tax (b) 2015 6HA30H @ AEBEEELR

liability is recognised (31 December 2014: nil).

(9) Other non-current assets

©) EHIFnEEE

30 June 2015

BHRAaE(2014F12831H : &) -

31 December 2014

201564308 2014%12831H
Advance of the terminal AR MERETRERE
expansion project (a) ERE T () 361,534,570 361,534,570
Advance of the terminal FEfF U ATAR A B T2 ()
complex project (b) 478,012,438 468,302,800
Advance of other projects H b TET T2 5K 20,895,383 11,390,824
860,442,391 841,228,194

2015 HIkE |
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(9) Other non-current assets (Continued)

(a)

Up to 30 June 2015, the Group has paid
RMB643,361,200 to Haikou Meilan in connection
with the terminal expansion project (31 December
2014: RMB643,361,200). The international
terminal building and its ancillary projects, which
were completed and put into use in 2013, with
a total cost of RMB281,826,630 (31 December
2014: RMB281,826,630) have been transferred
to fixed assets in 2013. Details of the terminal
expansion project are set out in Note 7(5)(a).

Up to 30 June 2015, the Group has paid
RMB565,120,759 to Yangpu Guoxing Construction
Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu Guoxing”) in connection with
the terminal complex project (31 December 2014
RMB502,643,028), of which RMB87,108,321 (31
December 2014: RMB34,340,228) were capitalised
in construction in progress. Details of the terminal
complex project are set out in Note7(5)(b).

(10) Accounts payable

The ageing of accounts payable based on their

recording dates is analysed as follows:

N SOt BHREAEMEE®)

9) HMIETEEE &)

(@ #HZE201546A30H @ KRR R:TX
EE O EREMBERE TREH
ME < HARKE643,361,2007T (2014
F12 A31H : AR ¥ 643,361,200
J0) s HARBEBMEEREEIREER
2013FERITIWIRAFLA + KAA
A R # 281,826,630t (2014 12 A
318 : AR#¥281,826,6307T)C 4
ZETEE - MUEEZE TEN
B2 RHEEG)a) -

(o) #HZE2015F6H30R * ~AAaal &5
S EEHEE TIRE R AR A A
(7% B 8 | ) B2 =€ 7 B B 4 35 il A
REREEREENIERAARE
565,120,759 7C (201412 A 31 H
AR 502,643,028 70 ) @ & L
EHEEEARETIEARKS7,108,321
L (2014512 A31H : AR®
34,340,2287T) ° WhAT4R A BB TIZH
B RELREEG)b)

(10) [ETTERH
FETER SR E AR B IR AT T -

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

201556 H30H 2014412 A31H

Within 90 days 90K LA 11,782,343 9,249,894
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 2,760,935 2,478,336
over 180 days 180K 2,614,271 3,505,858
17,157,549 15,234,088
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

4

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(11) Advances from customers

(11) TEY KA

30 June 2015

SOt ERRIEE M sk 2)

31 December 2014

201564308 2014%12A31H

User fees of VIP room EEEFTAHE 3,253,521 5,796,427
Deposit of transfer of land use rights 3 {5 P A B G K

(Note7(5)(a-1)) (Bt aEt(5)(a-1)) 3,128,973 3,128,973

Takeoff and landing fees HEfR & 1,051,778 364,871

7,434,272 9,290,271

(12) Employee benefits payable

(12) FE1T B T 3% By

30 June 2015

31 December 2014

2015%6H30H 2014%12A31H

Short-term employee benefits payable  J& 152 4A % Fil 15,235,537 22,675,115

Defined contribution plan payable JE R E R T2 91,852 52,176
Termination benefits payable FE B R AR F

(Current portion) (—FREIHHZD) 1,250,029 1,392,107

16,577,418 24,119,398

2015 EAsR &
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z2015%46 A30H 1L/~ & A A
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4FIFEHS) - 2 3EE T AARKT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(13) Taxes payable

(13) EXH &

30 June 2015

I SOt EHREBME®)

31 December 2014

20156 H30H 2014%F12H31H
CIT payable FER XS 26,481,987 38,206,004
Business tax payable TERT BT 3,151,218 3,482,692
Individual income tax payable BN R 464,515 142,190
Property tax payable EXEER 422,987 2,145,213
Others Hi 256,527 712,597
30,777,234 44,688,696

(14) Interest payable (14) ENTFE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014512 A31H
Interest of long-term borrowings RAEAEFAE 676,872 670,293
Interest of corporate bonds NEEHFFE 18,200,001 49,746,667
18,876,873 50,416,960

(15) Dividends payable (15) FERTALTFY
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014412 A31H
H-Shares held by domestic investors BAN ETH A EIRRRER 499,500 499,500
H-Shares held by foreign investors BN T EINE R AR R 18,590,154 17,152,633
19,089,654 17,652,133

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements e ISR

(Continued)

(16) Other payables

RIEHME )

(16) Eftb &R 5L

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014412A31H

Construction fee and quality ENIRIRIRERS
assurance deposit payables 31,747,189 11,008,663
Airport ground services fee payable FEHR U i T AR 7S & 29,418,107 9,654,183
Guarantee deposit ERHESRES 25,985,233 26,605,819
Accrued airlines development subsidy  FE1E 457 5 24 4 8L 3¢ 14,900,000 14,900,000
Accrued airlines increment subsidy TELRANARIE = AL X 3,336,570 3,204,506
Airline subsidy received on behalf U AR 4R 8 Bh 3R 421,410 4,753,069
Others Hith 48,149,466 44,110,115
153,957,975 114,236,355

(17) Current portion of non-current liabilities

(17) —FRERIFETE B B

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6830H 2014512 H31H
Current portion of long-term borrowings —F A Z|HiA REAER

(Note 4(18)) (H12£9(18)) 492,144,800 416,092,000

Current portion of long-term payables — — 4 A I HA #) & HA FE {5+ 3¢
(Note 4(20)) (W]‘E@(QO)) 28,414,664 28,581,972
520,559,464 444,673,972
20155 8RE | EmERReERAE 50
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(18) Long-term borrowings

SOt B E|RIFA M T2

(18) RAEFE

30 June 2015
20156 H30H

31 December 2014
2014512 A31H

Secured borrowings HE R
Less: Current portion of long-term

borrowings (Note 4(17))

1,458,829,237 1,662,055,758

B —FREEE R EE
(H1aErm(17))

(492,144,800) (416,092,000)

966,684,437 1,245,963,758

As at 30 June 2015, the weighted average interest
rate of long-term borrowings is 6.13% per annum (31
December 2014: 5.86% per annum).

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of RMB
1,348,824,328 (31 December 2014: RMB
1,496,882,684) are secured by the 51% interests
in Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo
Transportation Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Cargo”) held by the
Company and the Group’s LUR with a carrying amount
of RMB8,593,242 (original cost: RMB11,852,138)
(Note 4(7)). Interests are payable every quarter and
the principal is due for repayment by installment on or
before 30 December 2016.

As at 30 June 2015, bank borrowings of
RMB110,004,909, (31 December 2014: equivalent to
RMB165,173,074) are secured by the 24.5% interests
in HNA Airport Holdings held by the Company.
Interests are payable every quarter and the principal
is due for repayment by installment on or before 26
January 2016.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |

60

M2015%6 A30H @ K HIE A H#E T 15 F 7 R
56.13% (201412 A31H : £H|=5.86%) °

R2015%F 6 A30H - R 1T & 50 1,348,824,328
(2014912 A31 8 : 1,496,882,684 7L ) & M
RARFERSHEEHERKSZEEBREE
ARANEHEEDSI1%REERERERAEE
RMEEHARKS 93242 T (REAEARE
11,852,138 7T ) 2 - b {5 FA #E 1 A3 (B 52 10
@) FEEBEZEELM—IX  AE&EN2016F12
HB0B K2R HAERE -

2015 6 A30H iR 77 & 3 110,004,909 7T
(2014%12A318 : 165,173,07470) = A A A
BB RS ISIER 24 5% EEAER - F &
BFEEXN—IR  ALENR20165F1H26H k2

Al HAEE -
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N SOt EBREB ME®)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(19) Corporate bonds

(19) 2 AlfE%

Amortisation in

31 December 2014 current period 30 June 2015

2014%12831H 7 HA 8 8 201566 H30H

Long-term corporate bonds KEIQ AlEH 793,619,030 655,488 794,274,518
Related information is as follows: BEHBRBESNT :

Issuance Issuance

Par value date Maturity amount

EE BT BHHR BIEE

Corporate bonds RNaElESH

800,000,000 13 March 2012 7 years 800,000,000

Interest accrued of the bonds is analysed as below:

BHZ MBSO T

Interest accrued

FEST R B

Interest  Interest paid

31 December accrued in in current 30 June

2014 current period period 2015

20145 20154

12A318 AHEFFE FAHECRE 6430H

Corporate bonds NEESH 49,746,667 30,853,334 (62,400,000) 18,200,001

Pursuant to Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2011] No. 2082 KPR ELFEEERZEEEENA

approved by the China Securities Regulatory [2011]20825% 3 #%  * 20123 A 13H AR

Commission, the Company issued corporate bonds AR EBBEFR I ARBITEAHRER

of RMB800,000,000 on Shanghai Stock Exchange on AR AIMES @ #E1THEFE AKR800,000,000

13 March 2012. The maturity of the bonds is 7 years, oL EHFERATE - WESFKAEIR

the fixed interest rate is 7.8% per annum, interest is FitBE  BEFMEET7.8% @ BFEMBE—

repayable annually on 15 March of each of the years WK HEBASF3A158 - A&EEIEA
and the principal is repayable upon maturity. —IRMEE -

20155 8RE | EMEBRROERAT O
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, 201596 A 308 1-/~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (/%% FllzF8H5)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(20) Long-term payables

R HELBARET)

SOt B E|RIFA M T2

(20) REENT 5

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

20156 H30H 201412 A31H

Payable for finance lease RS E D 83,664,492 94,877,308
Less: Finance lease payable due within g : — & 2| BA K B~ B

olieyeaR(haie (i) RER(HF0(17) (28,414,664) (28,681,972)

55,249,828 66,295,336

(21) Undistributed profits

As at 30 June 2015, included in the undistributed
profits, RMB2,265,427 is subsidiaries’ surplus reserve
attributable to the Company (31 December 2014:
RMB2,265,427), no appropriation has been made
by the subsidiaries for the period (for the six months

ended 30 June 2014: nil).

(21) K57 B0 FE
2015F6 A30H @+ kO EHEBEH B S 5F
BREAGNTFAGRBRAEMBREARK
2,265,427 7L (201412 H31H : AR
2,265,42770) + TRAAIANHEIREBRR
B RRMNAEKAE (B E2014F6 A308 1E
BEA : &) -

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30H L6 A
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Dividends paid in current period B 50K 2 AR F S 5 43,062,400 39,730,000

Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ annual
general meeting on 18 May 2015, 2014 final dividends
of RMB0.091 per share, amounting to RMB43,062,400
(for the six months ended 30 June 2014: 2013 final
dividend of RMB39,730,000), were declared and paid.

62
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BIE2015F5 A18HIREAF ARG RE © A
ANEMEEREIRE2014FERAR S
F o SREFAAREE0.091TT » B ST
B&17473,213,0008% 5T & - IREIH R FIA
R 43,062,400 T (# £2014%6 A30H Lt
61E A : IXE&2013F E RHHE ¢ IR FI AR
39,730,0007T) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(22) Revenue and operating costs, general and
administrative expenses

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

(22) ERWAFIERKA - EEEH

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H 1L61E A
2015 2014
20154 20144
Revenue EAON
Aeronautical: Mz 2T

Passenger service charges K= RS & 122,498,277 105,779,019

Refund of Civil Aviation EmERESREMA
Development Fund 97,355,630 84,605,787

Fees and related charges on T e B N2 AR R Uk &
aircraft takeoff and landing 41,746,577 36,696,198
Ground handling services income o RS & 44,105,915 38,317,205
305,706,399 265,398,209
Non-aeronautical: JEMZE M TS ¢

Franchise fee B i I A 134,828,821 103,720,487
Freight and packaging income BERBEREA 72,256,810 34,136,151
Rental income HLUWA 18,946,343 17,655,068
VIP room income BEEERA 7,211,978 11,877,073
Parking income FEIZITA 8,586,217 7,513,916
Other income E A 24,157,204 16,763,029
265,987,373 191,665,724
571,693,772 457,063,933

2015 EAsR &
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(22) Revenue and operating costs, general and (22) BEINAFIZEZK K  EHEEH (&)

64
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administrative expenses (Continued)

Operating costs and general and administrative

expenses include the following items:

EERANREEERIEZAATIEEBK

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6H30H L6188
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Employee benefit expenses BETRANER 59,228,480 49,649,375
Depreciation of fixed aseests BEEEFTEER 29,922,350 29,097,041
Airport and logistic services fee W5 RINE R B IRIG & 20,110,760 20,923,150
Contract labour expenses EiskiE AEEH 19,207,407 13,782,617
Utilities KB E 12,966,076 12,598,542
Repairs and maintenance “iEEH 9,727,086 5,652,177
Other taxes H A 5,159,096 4,821,578
Packaging materials HARK A 3,653,380 3,419,163
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center RATSEHRLFEE 2,710,833 1,997,157
Amortisation of land use rights - Jth {55 R AR 6 1,985,881 1,985,882
Travelling expenses EIRE 893,744 1,007,620
Audit fee E:tE 660,000 600,000
Others Hih 75,930,827 37,651,636
242,155,920 183,085,938
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(23) Financial expenses — net

(23) B EH—F5

SOtE SRR IE B sk &)

Six months ended 30 June

#HZ6H30H L6fEA

2015 2014

20154 20144

Interest expenses B EH 84,588,582 85,328,526

Including: Bank borrowings Heh : SRITER 50,155,439 51,162,514

Coporate bonds RalEH 31,858,608 30,853,334

Finance leases BEMEE 2,574,535 3,312,678

Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses P& 5% (e ) 1Bk (2,648,577) 12,775,963
Less: Interest and exchange losses VB A B R E N

capitalisation BRERE (51,114,105) (35,792,758)

Interest income T2 WA (20,023,074) (9,411,494)

Others Hitb 560,825 970,652

11,363,651 53,870,889

(24) Investment income

(24) KE Wz

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H 6fEA
2015 2014
20154 20144
Share of profit of investees under AR E R R AR
equity method B W
— HNA Airport Holding — G % 10,802,395 11,812,933
Share of loss of investees under Rz AR E R REARE
equity method wEEK
— Haikou Decheng — g A= (3,131) -
10,799,264 11,812,933

There is no significant restriction on the repatriation of

investment income.

Investment income derived from unlisted companies
for the period amounted to RMB10,799,264 (for the six

months ended 30 June 2014: RMB11,812,933). A+ AR%11,812,9337T) °

2015 EAsR &

AEETFERERSERNEARRS -

ANEREIE EHEATNRE WS A AR
10,799,264 7t (& = 201456 A30 H 161
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(25) Income tax expenses

SOtEr IR IE B s (2)

(25) FiiZHEH

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6H30H 6@ R
2015 2014
20154 20144
Current income tax B HIFT SR 75,449,692 49,509,940
Deferred income tax IRIEFTIS TR 191,478 4,291,665
75,641,170 53,801,605

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based
on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in
the consolidated financial statements to the income tax

expenses is as below:

HERGHANBRNFBRBERAERBREX
AEHASHANSHERERWT

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6H30H 6@ R

2015 2014

2015%F 20144

Total profit bR 312,266,135 224,450,310
Income tax expenses calculated BEAEBEEARETEN

at applicable tax rates 5% 78,066,534 56,112,578

Income not subject to tax FEFE AT WA (2,699,816) (2,953,233)

Costs and expenses not deductible ENCECRE ) SR
for tax purposes 274,452 642,260
75,641,170 53,801,605

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2015
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PR ERAR MR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, Z201546 A30H [t/ & A HAfE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

BOIM I HRRITE M)

(Continued)

(26) Earnings per share

(@)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by
dividing consolidated net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding:

(26) FFHRW 75

@ EAFHRUBENBBREAFEER
BEREE GOFMBEBR AR QB HITHE
SNE R E AN BRET

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6H30H LL6ME A
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Consolidated net profit attributable 8B RZAN A 7] L @ IR A% R
to ordinary shareholders of the AHFFBE(ARETT)
Company (RMB) 232,036,002 166,467,595
Weighted average number of R A EITEING A
outstanding ordinary shares of I E(AR)
the Company (share) 473,213,000 473,213,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) ERFRIUzE(ARET) 0.49 0.35

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the impact on the consolidated net
profit and weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
period (for the six months ended 30 June 2014:
nil), diluted earnings per share equals to basic
earnings per share.

by HEERKSUREREREELELE

AR BENEBR AN R LR ER

BIA BEE R B G A AR AR A B3

TEINEBROMBEFESEGTE - 1

RE - KRR FEEARBIENE

BT (B E2014%6 A308 1E61E

A&\ At HEEREESRE
KR ES -

201550 sk | EMEBRRGBERAE O/



Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SHERREB M2
(Continued)

(27) Dividends (27) BRF

Six months ended 30 June

#HZ=6H30H 1L61E A
2015 2014
20154 20144
Proposed 2015 intrerim dividend of #R20155F A BARR F & AR
RMBO0.120 per share AR®0.1207T
(for the six months ended 30 June (B Z=2014%6 830H LE61#
2014: RMBO0.085 per share) A : IR AR¥0.0857T) 56,785,560 40,223,100
An interiml dividend of 2015 of RMB0.120 per share, M2015F8H21H - EEEEZEHIK2015
amounting to RMB56,785,560 was proposed by FEHRHRRSRANGKRAREC1207T - &
the Board of Directors on 21 August 2015 (2014 T A ARMSE6,785,5607T (2014 F [EH HE
interim dividend: RMBO0.085 per share, amounting S IEF  FRARE0.0857T © BEFAAR
to RMB40,223,100). This dividend has not been #40,223,1007T) ° B Z 201556 H30H 1E
recognised as a liability in these interim financial 61 A B - SRR AN R 7R AN R ER B 75 3R
statements. R EERBAE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, Z201546 A30H [t/ & A HAfE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

5 Interest in other entity 7 EHMFRPHES
(1) Interest in subsidiaries (1) FEFRaE]IPE#EZ
(a)  Structure of the enterprise group (a) IEEFEEFEMEX
Place of Place of Principal Interest Voting Way of
operation registration activities held rights achieve
TELE N Tt EBHE EEFREA  RAELH BEAERX
Haikou Meilan Haikou Haikou Retail sales 95% 100% Set up
International

Airport Duty-Free
Shop Ltd. (“Meilan
Duty-Free Shop”)

B8 AR mOmm momm HERHEm 95% 100% FIZEUS
BB 15 0 B o
BRAA
([Z=mefl)
Meilan Cargo Haikou Haikou Provision of cargo 51% 60% Set up
(Note) transportation
service
EWEEME) BOm O™ R EERS 51% 60% =%3ZEIS
Note: The Company holds 51% of equity interest Hist - R REVEEHEERNF KRG
in Meilan Cargo. The key operating and R51%  EWMEEXELER
financial decisions of Meilan Cargo should PR BESSEL - &
be made by its board of directors with the BREBREVEKALERES
approval of at least half of the directors EEEMN_HSZ—WESRRE
attend at the board meeting. Three out of TeeimiE - EEEEEFEN
five directors of Meilan Cargo are nominated BH5% - ARElA#IE 3%
by the Company. Therefore, the Company EE MARRMAEZHEE
holds 60% of the voting rights of Meilan B 2R L B 760% °
Cargo.
There is no restriction of the use of the Group’s AEBTNFEFRAEEEERFES
assets nor the settlement of the liability of the EaErmEmrRS e
Group.

201550 3%k | EmEBRRGERAE 0O
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FAFS R

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

i EHERPNER )

5 Interest in other entity (Continued)

(2) Interest in associates

(@)

70 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |

Basic information of significant associates

2) HEBETEEFAEm

@

EZBET R BEREE

(Hat)

BSHRE - #

2R s

Strategic
Place of Place of impact on
operation registration Principal activities group activity  Interest held
HEBEED
=58%8
TERE S fifit ERHE afidcd R
Haikou Decheng Haikou, Haikou, Property development, Yes 30%
Hainan Hainan resort operation
Province Province development,
eco-agriculture
development and
gardening
AR BEEABAT BEEE0OM YERE - ABERLCE = 30%
AR B2
HNA Airport Group  Haikou, Haikou, Airport operation and Yes 24.5%
(Note) Hainan Hainan ground handling services;
Province Province airport investment,
holding, coustruction
and rebuilding
SR 2 ey BEEAEAOT BEEEAN BBELEBRIMERE: <& 24.5%

Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method.

Note: The place of incorporation and business

of HNA Airport Group are in the PRC, and
there is no business relationship between
the Group and HNA Airport Group. The
equity interest held by the Group is 24.5%
and the voting rights are 1/7. Although the
percentage of the voting rights held by the
Group is less than 20%, one out of seven
directors of the board of directors of HNA
Airport Group is nominated by the Group.
Therefore the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over HNA Airport
Group and regarded it as an associate of
the Group.

INTERIM REPORT 2015

RNEEE DMREREDRAERE

Hte : BMESERNFRIOREE
EmER EOER - AEEY
VB A 35 1 R A B AR L B A
24.5% * FOABELLBIH1/7 - B
RIEF20% 1B =5 H 15 2
REES7TZRESFMIBHENRN
SEEm - MAKE Y
M IEREMERNZ
BUBEIE R & DEZE o



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, Z201546 A30H [t/ & A HAfE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

6

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) of the Group
has been identified as the executive directors and senior
management led by the chairman of the Company. The
CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM considers the Group conduct its business within
one business segment — operating an airport and provision
of related services in the airport. The Group also operates
within one geographical segment because its revenues are
primarily generated from and its assets are located in the
PRC.

Related parties and related party transactions

(1) The parent company

(@)  General information of the parent company:

Place of registration
EEaiip:u

AY

/\

TEER

AEERSEERRECERATESRERR
RETHEREEE - EEEEHA RS AR
MEBRDEER - EEREER LAREIERD
BRI -

EEERSAKEER —BETXEALLER - B
R B E — (E5 I IR AR R ARTS - R - &
RASRENBSFTERETE - REENMMIRF
C REEER A AL ER

FEBITERRERS

(1) BRAIER
@) BRFEKNBER :

Nature of business

EBHE

Haikou, Hainan Province

ik Yelaki

Haikou Meilan
isEmES

Transportation and ground handling services
TRt 22 i 8 R 3t T IR AR 7S

2015 ERsRE | smMEBRRAER2E [



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS FR R B 5
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (/%% FllzF8H5)

7

/2

Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(1) The parent company (Continued)
(b) Registered capital and changes in registered

capital of the parent company:

F DR AARET)
+ BEIBERERERZ #)

(1) BRENER(E)
b) BARRMEARLBIL :

30 June 2015 and
31 December 2014
201556 H30H
%2014512831H

peAmESys

Haikou Meilan

2,028,913,102

The proportions of equity interests and voting
rights in the Company held by the parent
company:

ISFACTEI RN ES Y S A RN N -
L

30 June 2015 and
31 December 2014
201596 H30H
%2014512831H
% Interest held % Voting rights
FERLEOI%  FORELHI%

NeAmESys

Haikou Meilan

50.19 50.19

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED | INTERIM REPORT 2015
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BTSRRI 5
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 2201596 4308 1£7~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (F&45)zFEH5)

7 Related parties and related party transactions

P RREMBARETT)

t BBRIBREREARS @)

/|

(Continued)
(2) Information of other related parties 2) EfEgE 71X
Relationship with the Group
BRI R B R
HNA Group Has significant influence on parent
company
S HEAREEATLE
Hainan Developing Holding Company Limited Has significant influence on parent
(“Hainan Developing”) company
BrEAERERER AR (TR HERRBEEARE
Hainan Airlines Under control of Hainan Developing
g rMnZE RGBT REES
Hainan Airlines Food Company Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Food”) Under control of HNA Group
BEMERRARAR(EMER]) SR ek
Hainan HNA Property Management Co., Ltd (“HNA Property”) Under control of HNA Group
BMYEERAERAB(EMYE]) Edi=RE e ok
Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Capital Airlines”) Under control of HNA Group
EREEMEARAB ([ EEHMZE]) Edi=RE SE ok
HNA Group Finance Under control of HNA Group
B 5 SR SE ok
HNA Safe Car Rental Co., Ltd. (“HNA Safe”) Under control of HNA Group
BmERAEEERRAR(EMRERE]) e E e
Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Airlines”) Under control of HNA Group
REMZEBREER A REMZE]) e s E S
Western Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Western Airlines”) Under control of HNA Group
AERMEAREEL A FEEHmZE]) XM E S
HNA Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (“HNA Cargo”) Under control of HNA Group
BMEERGRAR([EMEE]) e s E e E S
201550 sk | EMEBRROERAE /3



Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z201596 A30H It/ 1E A HifE
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

7 Related parties and related party transactions + BEEFBEERERS &)

(Continued)
(2) Information of other related parties (Continued) (2) HEFH 5187 (&)
Relationship with the Group
EEACER B R B (R
Hainan Meilan International Airport Travelling Co., Ltd Under control of HNA Group
(“Meilan Travelling”)
AR BERES IR T EREELR A ([EBKITA]) 8 i SR B Y
Deer Jet Co., Ltd. (“Deer Jet”) Under control of HNA Group
—hEmeBABMENERBERAR(I=ZEE£E]) 8 i SR B

Hainan Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Eking Technology”) Under control of HNA Group

B SEMBRMERAR(EESERE]) XS B

Yangpu Guoxing Under control of HNA Group

7 R B B 8 i g B Y

Haidao Commercial Under control of HNA Group

NEASTES 78 i 5= B 1

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd. Under common control of HNA Group

(“HNA China Duty Free”)
BEEMPEENmAERAR(DERPE]) XM R E &) HREE
(3) Significant related party transactions B) BEABHLS

(@)  Pricing policies (@) EERE
The pricing on goods purchased from related ARBRBEBSRENERARAH
parties, services provided to or received from Bk 77 1 S 55 755 K TR R O R £ 25 T O
related parties are based on market price. (B AT ERERE EERE -
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BT R Pt

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

+ BEBRLTBERERERS &)

7 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(b)  Purchases of goods or services

3 BEABHXZ (&)
(b) REEVMHEIEH

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6A30HL6MEA

2015 2014 2015 2014

20155 201445 2015% 20144

Group Group Company Company

KEE AEE NG| YN

Haikou Meilan BOER 11,084,639 13,482,068 9,844,211 11,483,152
Related parties under control B 5 BRI B R

of HNA Group 56,074,382 18,587,866 18,794,130 14,762,394

67,159,021 32,069,934 28,638,341 26,245,546

(c) Rendering of services (c) FEMHEHE
Six months ended 30 June
HZ6A30HL6MEA

2015 2014 2015 2014

2015% 20145 20155 20145

Group Group Company Company

KEE AEE YNNG YN

Related parties under control XG i B 6 E

of HNA Group 41,884,877 35,829,032 41,884,877 35,829,032
Related parties under control St srdie Lol sl

of Hainan Developing 64,881,621 68,963,063 60,734,891 68,963,063
Related parties under common &G B £ R EIH

control of HNA Group 2] 3,178,434 3,240,706 3,178,434 3,240,706

109,944,932 108,032,801 105,798,202 108,032,801

2015 HIkE |

BRERRAERAT /5



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS FR R B 5
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, 201596 A 308 1-/~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

7 Related parties and related party transactions -+
(Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Lease expense

BETBERRERS &)

B) BB S (%)
@ HEEA

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6fEA
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 20144 20155 20145
Group Group Company Company
XEE AEE KRF ARE

Meilan Cargo EHEE

- = 1,800,000 1,800,000

() Remuneration of key management

) FAREEZEASHH

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H LL61E A
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Remuneration of key management R EIE A B Z 1,041,310 1,147,966

Key management include executive directors,
non-executive directors, president, vice
president, company secretary, chief financial
officer and supervisors of the Company.
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

7

Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

+ BEBRLTBERERERS &)

(3 BABH S (&)

(f)  Interest Income 0 FlLEHKA
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L6f8A

2015 2014 2015 2014

2015% 20144 20154 20146

Group Group Company Company

KEE A5E N YN

Related parties under control of 54 & B &)
HNA Group oy 18,130,580 5,956,362 18,130,580 5,954,891

Amount represents the interest income of
entrust loan and deposit, which are calculated in
accordance with the agreed fixed rate of 8% per
annum and deposit rates of commercial banks
over the same period respectively.

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to
related parties

EFRFBWABREZEERFE WA
MERMBWA - ZEERHBRR
&8 75 1% € 2 [ E F M X 8% (£ (3))
A E ERAERBRERRTASE

R -

(4) BABEHESJEW - BN HIRERER

(@) Cash at bank (a) K&
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 20145 20156 20146
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
KEE A5E N /NG

Related parties under control X B

of HNA Group )y 229,149,036 199,358,573 229,088,543 199,298,146
2015 ERsRE | sMEBRROER2E [/



Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFS R

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, 201596 A 308 1-/~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4FIFEHS) - 2 3EE T AARKT)

BETBERRERS &)

7

/8

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to

related parties (Continued)

+

(4) BEAXBHH T IEW - BN TR ()

(b) Accounts receivable (b) JEWARFL
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 20144 2015F 20146
6H30H 12A318 6H30H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
AEE KEE KA VN
Related parties has significant HENEHEEATYEN
influence on Haikou Meilan )iyl 235,300 128,140 235,300 128,140
Related parties under control of 52 /&# 5 B | F)RARE 7
HNA Group 16,300,958 16,679,911 16,300,958 16,679,912
Related parties under control of SR EAR | KO RARS 7
Hainan Developing 22,535,983 23,370,695 22,001,001 22,828,569
Related parties under common &6 EE M L REEH
control of HNA Group Za]:eban 690,756 5,670,592 690,756 5,670,592
39,762,997 45,849,338 39,228,015 45,307,213

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
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BT R Pt

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

+ BEBRLTBERERERS &)

7

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to

related parties (Continued)

(4) BEABHH D IEWK ~ BT FIIRERER (%)

(c) Advances to suppliers (c) FENIFIA
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015F 2014 20155 20146
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
KEE AEE KNS YN
Related parties under control of =5 & B2 5 #) R
HNA Group 482,693,054 470,333,262 482,693,054 470,333,262
Haikou Meilan (Note 7(5)(a)) BOXBE(HEL05)E) 361,534,570 361,534,570 361,534,570 361,534,570
844,227,624 831,867,832 844,227,624 831,867,832
(d)  Other receivables (d) EHmEW
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015 20144 20155 20146
6H30H 12H31H 6H30H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
KEE AEE NN YN
Meilan Duty-Free shop XHEH - = 1,809,752 1,809,752
Related parties under control of & & B4 &I 60 R 77
HNA Group 663,237 534,348 663,237 534,348
Related parties under control of 3212 B 41| &) BB Bt
Hainan Developing 3,851,892 1,626,197 3,851,892 1,626,197
4,515,129 2,160,545 6,324,881 3,970,297
20155 8E | OsmERReERLT 79
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FAFS R

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & Z2015%46 A30H 1L/~ & A A
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4FIFEHS) - 2 3EE T AARKT)

7

80

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to

related parties (Continued)

(e) Interest receivable

+ BEBRLIBRERERERS @)

(4) BEAXBHE T FEW - BN SRR ()

€ EHFE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 20144 2015F 20144
6A30H 12H31H 6A30H 124318
Group Group Company Company
XEE AEE NG ARE
Related parties under control of 5 5= Bl 4 #y B
HNA Group 2,438,655 2,269,667 2,438,655 2,269,667
(f)  Long-term receivable (n  REJEKSL

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 2015 20145
6A30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
A5E A5E NG ARE

Related parties under control of — S2/Efi 5 4| K RAHE
HNA Group 380,000,000 380,000,000 380,000,000 380,000,000

(9) Accounts payable (9 [ERERZ

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015% 20145 2015% 20144
6H30H 12H31H 6A30H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
AEE AEHE LN NG

Related parties under control of /& B2 H| 5 @kt
HNA Group 11,225,037 10,740,502 11,255,037 10,740,502

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
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BT R Pt

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 220156 A30H 1E7~{E A B
(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (Br4ERIFEAS) » £ 5EE T AARETT)

+ BEBRLTBERERERS &)

7

Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to

related parties (Continued)
(h)  Other payables

(4) BEABHH D IEWK ~ BT FIIRERER (%)

(h) EENHK

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

2015% 20144 20155 20146

6H30H 12A31H 6H30A 12A31H

Group Group Company Company

KEE A5E NG| YN

Haikou Meilan BOER 45,958,072 9,654,183 38,848,488 4,145,715

Related parties under control of /& & B4 i 4 B

HNA Group 1,647,525 1,547,387 456,898 43,464,299
Related parties under control of S/ IR I 6 BB 7y

Hainan Developing 22,014,389 22,841,957 22,001,001 22,828,569

69,619,986 34,043,527 61,306,387 70,438,583

() Advances from customers () FEMGLE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

2015 20144 20155 20144

6H30H 12H31H 6H30A 12A31RH

Group Group Company Company

KEE AEE NG| YN

Haikou Meilan (Note 7(5)(z)) OZE@(HE+65)a) 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973
Related parties under common %61 &= Bl #) £ 12 4

control of HNA Group el 61,901 61,901 - =

3,190,874 3,190,874 3,128,973 3,128,973
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FAFS R

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &, 201596 A 308 1-/~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (/%% FllzF8H5)

7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to
related parties (Continued)

()  Directors’ emolument payable

R HELBARET)

+ BEBRIBERERERS &)

(4) BEAXBHE T FEW - BN SRR ()

0 ENEFFTH

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20155 20145 2015% 20144

6A30A8 12A318 6A30R 12A31H

Group Group Company Company

KEE AEHE NG VNG

Directors’ emolument SEHH 260,000 650,745 260,000 650,745

(6) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties

The commitments in relation to related parties by the
Group and the Company as at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

(a)  Terminal Expansion Project

(5) BABHE D A

RTRAKERARRREERAFERA @ &
BARE D AR AEGEE IR ¢

(@) MivhEiEeE T

30 June 31 December

2015 2014
2015% 20144
6H30H 12H31H

Land Use Right Transfer Agreement
and Investment and Construction
Agreement with Haikou Meilan
— Receivable from Haikou Meilan
for Land Use Right Transfer
(Note a-1)

— Payable to Haikou Meilan under
the Investment and Construction
Agreement (Note a-2)

MAOXERF]EE T ER
e M B R R

— AR OSSR IR 2 3
EREEER (M ita-1)

(28,160,761)  (28,160,761)

—FBABOXBN2KE
BEREEH(Hita-2)

383,318,800 383,318,800

355,158,039 355,158,039
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI 5
For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 2201596 4308 1£7~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (4% FlLBH5) » £ EEE M AARET)

7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(5) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties (Continued)

@

Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)

On 26 August 2011, the Company entered
into a Land Use Right Transfer Agreement and
an Acquisition Agreement with Haikou Meilan
in respect of construction of an international
terminal, expansion of west gallery of the terminal
and a number of ancillary projects in the Meilan
Airport (the “Project”). On 12 December 2012,
the Acquisition Agreement was terminated and
superseded by an Investment and Construction
Agreement entered into by the Company and
Haikou Meilan on the same day.

(a-1) As the LURs of the lands of the Project are
held by the Company and Haikou Meilan
separately, pursuant to the Land Use Right
Transfer Agreement, in order to facilitate the
construction of the Project and obtain of
relevant property ownership certificates as
a whole by Haikou Meilan, the Company will
transfer the LUR held by the Company with
a site area of 125 acres to Haikou Meilan
at a consideration of RMB31,289,734.
As at 30 June 2015, the Company has
received a deposit of RMB3,128,973
from Haikou Meilan (31 December 2014:
RMBS3,128,973).

+t BEBRITRERERERXS(

()

/|

SN\

=)
=

BB A7 (E)

(@) MihEEZEITRE(E)

201148 H26H » AAFHEEFOE
3 22 5% 2 R M5 B PR A b A~ ik
EPERBIER TR R EMEISREE
TROATEBE [ZEB DRI T
TP ARG R R ERE o B
201212 8128 « RE] MU=
RIE - AARAREGOEBFHRRE—AR
FRI MR & BRI ATEUR o

@) ARMEE BB L2 E
FA#EBAARNEADEEHD R
BE BEITHEFEREESS
MEZHE ARAIRARE
31,289,734 JL W E & ))& A 3
BB AR R4 125MA K I fF
FAtE - LMERE OEEEITHRI
BIEETRERET R REER
BMILE 2 EEFE - R20154F
6A30H - ARFIBEWEIEOE
MR T EAREERAR
#3,128,9737T (2014412 A 31
A : AR¥3,128,9737T) °
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(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 FIERAS) - & 8EE L AARKET)

7 Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(5) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties (Continued)

(@

84 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED | INTERIM REPORT 2015

Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)
(@-2) Pursuant to the Investment and

Construction Agreement, Haikou Meilan is
responsible for organising and supervising
the construction of the Project and
undertakes that, upon completion of the
construction of the Project and before
the transfer of the assets of the Project
to the Company, Haikou Meilan shall
not transfer or dispose of any assets of
the Project to any third party, and the
Company is exclusively entitled to operate
the Project. The total consideration
of the project is RMB1,026,680,000,
including the estimated construction cost
of RMB876,500,000 and land use rights
of RMB150,180,000. The Company shall
provide funds to Haikou Meilan according
to the progress of the construction of the
Project. The construction of the Project will
be completed no later than 31 December
2015. The above resolution has been
approved by the extrodinary general
shareholders meeting held on 4 March
2013.

The Company made no payments to Haikou
Meilan in respect of the Project in current
period, the accumulated payments made
by the Company to Haikou Meilan up to 30
June 2015 amounted to RMB643,361,200
(31 December 2014: RMB643,361,200).
The construction of the international
terminal and the ancillary projects have
been completed and put into use in 2013.
The Group has recognised fixed assets
of RMB236,748,630 according to the
related construction costs and LUR of
RMB45,078,000 according to the agreed
land transfer price, respectively, totaling
RMB281,826,630 (Note 4(5) and 4(7)) in
2013, which has been deducted from the
prepayments. As at 30 June 2015, the
remaining balance of advances to Haikou
Meilan amounted to RMB361,534,570 (31
December 2014: RMB361,534,570) (Note
4(9)(@)).

t BEBITRERREARS @

(5) EAXFFE T A (&)

(a) MiuiEEETLRE(E)

(a-2) BEREESR WS BOEWE
ERENERIBR ITRER I
ABERZEERTIERAAD
RIEEZIAR 2B ER - 5
FEAE=FEENHEZEE 2
FMEE BARRZEBRKLEZ
JHE 2 BERER - ZIAB MEHE
& %A AR1,026,680,000
T BREFEERAARE
876,500,0007T JA R+ Hb {5 FA 42
H{E AR ¥150,180,0007T @ AN
REERZEENERERZRE
OEMREEES - ZHEZHET
=IEER2015F 12 H31 H kA
BISERK o E#URZEE 4201343
B4B BHRMNERIRERS RE
il e

ARARRAHEREFOER
MIEERRES » B E20154F
6830H * AARIEME 03X
B REERES AR
643,361,2007T (2014412 A 31
B : AR#643,361,2007T ) °
ZIE B B e BB A Ui A2 K 48 RS
IT2EEDIN2013F XTI
AR ARRAR2013F IR E
BREEMNBEEXNARLOEN LT
WEEERLSALEEZETEE
E AR BD36,748,6307T & i
5 A # 45,078,000 * & & A
R 281,826,630 7T ( Hf 5% I (5)
M7)) MALEMEERRES
A o MR2015F6 H30H @ AN
REERESCRHBBEAHAARE
361,534,5707L (20144 12 A 31
B : AR#361,534,5707T) (Kt
FPH9)()) °
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(5) Significant commitments in relation to related
parties (Continued)

t BBRIBREREARS @)

(5) EBABHHE D A (E)

(b)  Terminal Complex Project (b) UhETARA RS
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
20154 20144
6H30H 12H31H
Construction fee to be paid through 2@ H B E7 f 2
Yangpu Guoxing TR 1,338,753,241 1,401,230,972

In 2014, the Company entered into a construction
service agreement with Yangpu Guoxing in
respect of construction of the Terminal Complex
Project. The budget cost of the Terminal Complex
Project is RMB1,903,874,000. Pursant to the
above agreement, the Company engaged
Yangpu Guoxing to monitor and manage the
construction of the Terminal Complex Project,
and will pay a service fee to Yangpu Guoxing at
3% of the total budget cost.

As at 30 June 2015, the Company has made
payments totaling RMB565,120,759 to Yangpu
Guoxing (31 December 2014: RMB502,643,028).

R2014 F - ANQ A& & 2R b Al
AR BHEBRESEAARY
1,903,874,0007T : [7]FF £ 77 B S 3t
ERUMASARBIEEET TELRRYE
Wk BREFHEEEEETRER
EITEIE  WIRMAIAmA BN ERTE
3% P ERKE -

HZE201546 A30H @ IRBERRE
Wik ARFE RFRFHBEESY
NIBRRRAEBAREE LA AR
565,120,759 7T (201412 A31 8 -
AR#502,643,0287T) °
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8 Capital commitments

 SEELBARET)
N BRMEXHEARSEE

30 June

2015
2015%F
6H30H

31 December
2014

20144
12H31H

Terminal Complex Project (Note 7(5)(b))
— approved but not yet signed
— signed but not yet recognised

Terminal Expansion Project (Note 7(5)(a))
— signed but not yet recognised

Other capital commitments signed but
not yet recognised

UhATAR & BEIE B (M1 £(5)b))
— DB N ARELD
—BERLIM S T UHER

b EiER TR (F3+(5)@)
— BRI s T UHER

HMBROM S T UHER 2
ErEEMEAMTH

1,237,139,953
101,613,288

383,318,800

70,202,437

1,297,139,954
104,091,018

383,318,800

1,792,274,478

1,784,549,772

9 Post balance sheet date events

86

N BEEBRARSEHE

(1) On 2 July 2015, the Company raised a loan of RMB1.2
billion from CITIC trust LLP, which is secured by
the right of receipt of aviation services fees from 1
May 2015 to 30 April 2020, the interest rate is 9%
per annum, interest and principal should be due for

repayment on installment in the next 5 years.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2015

(1)

R2015F7 A28 * AARIAFAEELEER
EEATEBAERARE12/E7L - BA2015
F5H1HZE2020%4 A30H BMAR AR R
B ZE AR IS S L IR ARERIERE TR - 5%
9% « F SRS ERSFADHIER -
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h BEESEBRERSBERM®)

9

Post balance sheet date events (Continued)

2

On 2 July 2014, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“SPA”) with Xinhua Lianhang
Airport Industry Investment Development Co., Ltd.
(“Xinhua Lianhang”), HNA International Tourism Island
Development (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Development”)
and Hainan HNA Engineering Construction Co., Ltd.
(“HNA Engineering”) to acquire 80% equity interest in
Wuhan HNA Lanhai Airport Industry Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Wuhan Linkong”) from Xinhua Lianhang, and
100% equity interest in Hainan Haidao Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Commercial”) from
Haidao Development and HNA Engineering. As at 31
July 2015 (the Long Stop Date of the Subscription
Agreement and the Sale and Purchase Agreement),
the Company is still unable to obtain the necessary
approvals from the Civil Aviation Administration of
China and the Ministry of Commerce in respect of the
Subscription Agreement and the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder. The Company, Xinhua Lianhang, Haidao
Development and HNA Engineering have signed a
termination confirmation, in which each of the parties
has agreed that it shall not take any action to claim for
damages (if any) against the others.

On 21 August 2015, the Company and the
Parent Company entered into the Investment
and Construction Agreement in respect of the
Airport Project of the Phase Il expansion project of
Meilan Airport (the “Airport Project”). Pursuant to
the Investment and Construction Agreement, the
estimated aggregate investment amount of Airport
Project is RMB13.838 billion, and the Company has
agreed to provide funds, amounting to approximately
RMB7.158 billion, to construct the Company
Construction Project. The Parent Company has
agreed to register the ownership of the relevant
assets comprising the Company Construction Project,
including but not limited to, the land use rights and
property ownership of the buildings, under the name of
the Company upon the completion and acceptance of
the Airport Project unless otherwise agreed by both the
Company and the Parent Company.

(2

2015 EAsRE |

Jﬁ;

R2014F7 A28 » AR A HIFEBMER
TEXERERBERAA([FEBM])
BMERRESHERER(EE) BR AR
(MEEREEER]) MEmEMTREER

RAR (M IR ZLEZ HE -
ERMUIBERSENREEME g EE
BRARAR([HRZERZ])80%/ARE
MEESREERLEMIEREEAREE
H) /8 S 22 100% R - Bl = 201547 A 31
B(REHELBEHZRETKE)  ZE
EWREEE mAESTRERBMER R AR
LA - ANARBEMER  BEREE
BRBMIEEFKIERE  FTASHRE
TeEgiEk(nE)mEMFIRERETE -

R2015F8A21H » AR A EE QAFIFE
BS —AERIEE cHI5ITAE ([ #5
HE DU EREEZwE - BRERER
Bz WIETEBBRRESHENABARE
138.381ET ' AR AIERERHEARZERR
AIERBEECES  ©BOABARKT1.58
BTt - RIEARRIRERARIZEHE &4
A2 BB R HISIE B TEak &5 UE A A F]
AERBEEKARRERIBEE CHEBEEZ
AR BEETHERIMEREREFT Y
VIZEREBRE -
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10

11

388

Leases

The future lease payments of the Group’s assets held under
finance lease (Note 4(8)(b)) are summarised as follows:

+ HE

AREBARERERABTEE  ARELZH
HSERMT :

30 June 31 December

2015 2014

20154 20144

6H30H 12A31H

Within one year —F AR 28,581,972 28,581,972
One to two years — 3| =& 28,581,972 28,581,972
Two to three years —H=F 28,581,972 28,581,972
Over three years =FLAE 7,211,456 21,436,479
92,957,372 107,182,395

As at 31 June 2015, the unrecognised financing charge
amounted to RMB9,292,880 (31 December 2014:
RMB12,305,087).

Financial instrument and risk

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (primarily foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in
RMB. As at 30 June 2015, major non-RMB assets
mainly represents the deposit denominated in US$,
totalling RMB287,954,148 (as at 31 December
2014: RMB660,997,715), non-RMB liabilities mainly
represents the borrowings denominated in US$,
totalling RMB1,485,564,909 (as at 31 December 2014:
RMB1,694,923,074). The Group has not entered into any
forward exchange contract to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

These interim financial statements do not include all financial
risk management information and disclosures required
in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements as
at 31 December 2014.

There have been no changes in the risk management
department or in any risk management policies since 31

December 2014.

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED |
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R2015F6 A30H ' AERNUEERREAL
AR#9 292 8807T (201412 A31H : AR
12,305,0877T) °

T-EMIARHER

AEENEEEPEeHMESREERER - MHRE
R(EZRINERRMMERL) - EHRRMR
BEKR  AKEEENRREETIHESEBD
BT RAIBRME - AREDHARNEETEEEDN
BENFZE

REBAEBEZUARKETT - K20155F6 7
30H  AEEMNFEIFARESHEETE A
NETTIEMFR - E A ARK287,954,1487C
(2014F12831H : AR¥660,997,71570) : 3
ARBSBEBBEETEAUETIENER  £5
AR #1,485,564,9097T (201412 H31H : A
R #1,694,923,0747T) o AN B W AT E(] 3R
HRSNGE & 49 DA R SN EE @B o

PH SRR T AP IEFEMERERBENE
B SRR B IR {E B AR E - Itk HR B S EUE e B
REBEE2014F12A31HILFENFEG %
Hwz—OFHIE -

H2014F 12 A31 B AR AL E R b E 12 565 R
BREIRBR I mE KEE) -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & 2201596 4308 1£7~1E A HAf

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (F&45)zFEH5)

12 Fair value

Based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, the fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

(1) Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value mainly represent receivables, payables, long-
term borrowings, corporate bonds and long-term
payables.

Except for financial liabilities listed below, the carrying
amount of other financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value is a reasonable approximation of
their fair value.

_I_

P RREMBARETT)

DN AEEME

NABEFELGRIIBHNEX  HYAAEER

EEEMEAFEZERNGAEBMBNRERE
IRRTE

F—EXR:HREEXABEERMS EAREHA
EORE

FBR  BFE-EXBAEIMIBEEXAR
EERAERABRNBAE -

F=FRX: HREEXBBENTABEBARE -

(1) TUAAEEEEHZFAENLEE
B EEME &
AEBUBHBE A ENEREENSRE
EXEAIE  EWRIE - ENRIE - REE

NARIEHFMEIEMNKE -

BTaeraENnIN T UARBES
ENEREENBENREAEBEEQAAEBE
ZERN o

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015664 30H 2014%12A31R
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

REEE DNAEE FREEE DABEE

Financial liabilities - Coporate bonds cRAE-ARES

794,274,518 858,800,000 793,619,030 847,920,000

The fair value of corporate bonds is determined at the
quoted price in the active market and is categorised in
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the
corporate bonds of the Company is determined by the
quoted prices of Shanghai Stock Exchange on the last
trading day prior to 30 June 2015.

FREERTSNDRIES - LWEEMDHT
WBEREEAABE BRE-ER-
$EH"_T%%‘<E’J’D\)LMETEL‘ALE§’§”§%

FT2015%6 H30H Z Al &xii — R 5 A R E#E
)'_j:jc
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13 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(1) Long-term equity investments

T= AR B WRMEE

(1) RHEIRERE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
201545 20144
6H30H 12H31H
Subsidiaries (a) /NG

— Unlisted companies —3EETAF] 10,477,825 10,477,825

Associates (Note 4(4)) B2 N R (B £ 9(4))
— Unlisted companies —JEEMAR] 1,138,946,126  1,128,146,862

Less: Long-term equity investments

impairment

B R EREER

(277,825)

(277,825)

1,149,146,126

1,138,346,862

There is no significant restriction on the conversion of
long-term equity investments into cash.

90 HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
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13

Notes to the Company’s financial statements
(Continued)

(2) Revenue and operating costs, general and 2)
administrative expenses

+T=Z AR EHRRMEE 2

ERRAFERKA - EEEH

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30R IL6ER
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Revenue EEAON
Aeronautical: Mz SRS -
Passenger service charges KBRS E 122,498,277 105,779,019
Refund of Civil Aviation Development EmzERESREMA
Fund 97,355,630 84,605,787
Fees and related charges on aircraft TR B PR N AR W B
takeoff and landing 41,746,577 36,696,198
Ground handling services income HE RS & 32,646,686 28,583,022
294,247,170 255,664,026
Non-aeronautical: JERTZE 2T
Franchise fee FERF RS WA 134,828,821 103,720,487
Rental income A BA 20,746,343 19,155,068
VIP room income HEEEWA 7,211,978 11,877,073
Parking income ZEIZIRA 8,586,217 7,513,916
Other income EH g A 24,157,204 16,746,740
195,530,563 159,013,284
489,777,733 414,677,310

2015 EAsR &

| osmERRGERAF O
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13 Notes to the Company’s financial statements += QT EHERMTE &)

(Continued)

(2) Revenue and operating costs, general and L) ERPRAFERKAE EEEH &)
administrative expenses (Continued)
Operating costs and general and administrative BERANREEEBHATEHATEBBEK

expenses include the following items:

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30HL6MEA

2015 2014

20154 20144

Employee benefit expenses BETEMNER 43,617,791 33,906,189
Depreciation of fixed assets BFTEEHEER 29,477,438 28,680,081
Airport and logistic services fee HIZ AN RS RIGE 18,436,472 18,490,375
Contract labour expense B kiE NEER 11,486,553 8,151,077
Utilities KEE 12,886,142 12,515,649
Repairs and maintenance I E 9,211,858 5,283,345
Other taxes HiRA 5,091,971 4,771,041
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center ERfi/EEHRLFESE 2,710,833 1,997,157
Amortisation of land use rights + b {55 P AR S 1,985,881 1,985,882
Travelling expenses EIRE 854,814 963,730
Audit fee TP E 660,000 600,000
Others Efb 36,973,576 35,133,799

173,393,329 152,478,325
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